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Bionomics Limited

19 August 2004

Securities and Exchange Commission
Judiciary Plaza,

450 Fifth Street,

Washington DC 20549

Re: Bionomics Limited - File number 82-34682

Please see attached provided pursuant to Section 12g3-2(b) file number 82-34682.

Yours sincerely

. Jill Mashado
Pw Company Secretary
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Bicnomics Limited (the Company) and the Board are commiited to achieving and applying a high standard
of corporate governance taking into consideration the Company's size and the industry in which the
Company operates. A review of the Company's corporate governance was completed during calendar 2003
in light of the 'best practice’ recommendations released by the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) Corporate
Governance Council {(ASX CGC guidelines) in March 2003. Pursuant to the guidance provided by the ASX,
as a smaller company, Bionomics is progressively adopting the ASX corporate governance framework and
undertaking reviews of its key business risks over a three year period that commenced on 1 July 2003, in
line with its business situation and capabilities. The timetable sefting out that adoption and review process
was announced to our shareholders at our 2003 Annual General Meeting (AGM) and is available on our
website.

The Company's framework is consistent with the ASX CGC guidelines and some operational changes have
been made as a result of both the review process to date and other recent governance developments.

Key developments to the Company's governance arrangements formalised in the course of 2003/34 and
arrangements previousily in place include the foliowing:

s Cash management polcy

s ASX announcements palicy

e Occupational Health and Safety commitiee processes

o Employee and director share trading policies

o  Audit and compliance commiitee charter

o Communications policy

o Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer sigr off on financial
statements and risk management assessment

» information systems risk management review

o Intellectual property risk management réview

s« Non-executive director independence guideiines

+ Independent decision making policy for directors

s Board charter

Director lefter of appointment

s Statement of Board and director competencies

The relationship and division of responsibilities between the Board and senior management are critical to
the Company's long term success. The directors are responsible to the shareholders for the performance of
the Company in both the short and the longer term and for seeking an appropriate balance between
sometimes competing objectives in determining the best interests of the Company. Their focus is to
enhance the interests of shareholders and to ensure the Company is properly governed.

Day to day management of the Company's affairs, including the implementation of its approved sirategy
and policy initialives, is delegated by the Board to the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Direclor and
executives, except for matters expressly required by law to be approved by the Board. This delegation
process has been formalised by the documentation of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chicf
Executive Officer and Managing Director and incorporated into the Board's charter.

A description of the Company's main corporate governance practices is set out below. All these practices.
unless otherwise stated, were in place for the entire year.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the Board) operates in accordance with the broad principles now formally set out in
its charter (Board Charter) that is available from the corpcrate governance section of the Company website
al www . bionomics.com.au. The Beeard Charter details the Board's composition and responsibiliias. The
Board Charter was approved at the August 2004 board meeting.
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The Board Charter (inter alia} states:

o the Bionomics Board will at ali times recognise its overriding responsibility to act honestly, fairly,
diligently. and in accordance with the law in fulfilling its primary responsibility of looking after the
inlerests of Bionomics' shareholders. These interests are well served by also taking into consideration
the interesis of other stakeholders such as employees and affiliated institutions.

3 the Board is to be comprised of both execulive and non-executive directors with a majority of non-
executive directors.
N in recognition of the importance of independent views and the Board's role in supervising the

activities of management, the majority of the Board must be independent of management and all
directors are required to bring independent judgement to bear in their Board decision making.

. the Board shali undertake an annual Board performance evaluation to identify any improvements
necessary for both its operations and the Board Charter.

Responsibilities of the Board
The responsibilities of the Board include:

o approving the strategic direction, objectives and annua!l financial budgel of Bicnomics and monitoring
the implementation of those siralegies and achievement of those cbjectives and budget.

. monitoring compliance with regulatory requirements and ethical standards. '

o appointing, and reviewing the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Direclor and
of the performance of the Chief Executive Officer's direct reports in achieving caorporate goals.

® approving announcements to shargholders and the ASX.

° approving significant third party agreements.

o i1ssuing shares, options, equity instruments or other securities,

° developing Bionomics' corporale governance procedures, systems of risk management and internal
compliance and control, codes of conduct {including human resources policies), and legal compliance.

° approving and monitoring the progress of major capital expenditure, capital management, and
acquisitions and divestures.

o assessing the composition of the Board and reviewing its processes and performance.

Board Members

Details of the members of the Board, their experience, expertise, qualifications, term of office and
independent status are set out in the Directors’ Report under the heading ‘Information on directors’. At the
date of signing the Directors’' Report there are four non-executive directors each of whom (including the
Chairman) are deemed independent under the principles set out below, and one executive director.

The Board seeks to ensure that, cognisant of the state of development of Bionomics as a company:

. at any point in time, its membership as @ group has expertise in areas of current and fulure
importance o the Company as it grows. '
° the size of the Board is conducive 1o effective discussion and efficient decision-making.

Directors’ Independence

The Board has adopted specific principles in relation to directors’ independence. These state that to be
deemed independent, a director must be one who is independent of management and free of any business
or other relationship that could materially interfere with — or could reasonably be perceived fo materially
interfere with ~ the exercise of their unfetiered and independent ludgement.

Issues relating to an assessmeni of the independence of a director will be determined by reference to the
guidance provided by the ASX CGC guidelines. The Board shall determine the thresholds of materiality
from the perspective of both the Company and its directors in delermining whether 2 direcior maintains his
or her independence of mind,
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Non-Executive Directors
The four non-executive directors mest at I2ast three times per year, in scheduled sessions without the
presence of management, (o discuss the cperation of the Board and a range of other matters.

Term of Office
The Company's Constitution specifies that all non-executive directors must retire from office no later than
the third AGM following their last election.

Role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board, ensuring directors are properly briefed in all matters
relevant to their role and responsibilities, faciltating Board discussions and managing the Board's
relationship with the Company's senior executives.

The Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director is responsible for implernenting the Company strategies
and policies. :

Commitment

Typically ten Board meetings and an additional corporate strategy review are held each year. At leas! two
Board meetings and the strategy review are face to face meetings at the Company’s offices in Adelaids,
South Australia. Other meetings of the Board occur with some Board members attending via phone.

The number of mestings of the Company's Board of directors and of each Board commitiee held during the
year ended 30 June 2004, and the number of meetings attencded by each director is disclosed in the
Directors’ Report under the heading 'Meetings of Directors’.

It is the Company's praclice to allow ils executive direclor to accept appointments outside the Company
with prior written approval of the Board.

Conflict of Interests

All Board members are required as a continuing obligation 1o immediately notify the Board in writing of any
actual or potential conflicts of interest or any circumstance that may affect a Board member's level of
independence.

independent Professional Advice

Directors may seek independent professional advice, at the expense of the Company, on any matler
connected with the discharge of their responsibilities. Prior written approval of the Chairman is required, but
this will not be unreasonably withheld. Copies of this advice will be made available to, and for the benefit of,
all Board members at the discretion of the Chairman.

Performance Assessment

In line with the timetables setting out the adoption of the ASX CGC guidelines, prior to the completion of the
June 2005 annual report, the Board will undertake an annua! self assessment comparing its performance
with the requirements of the Board Charter. In this process, the Chairman will meet directors individually to
assess how board performance may be improved. '

CORPORATE REPORTING
For each of the half year and full vear results, the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director and Chief
Financiat Officer are required lo make the following certifications to the Beard:

° that the Company's financial reports are complete and present g true and fair view, in all material
respacis, of the financial condition and operational results of the Company and are in accordance
with relevant accouniing standards.

° that the above statement 15 founded on a sound sysiem of risk management and intemnal compliance
and contrel which implements the policies adopted by lthe Board and that the Company's risk
management and inlernal compliance and conirol are operating efficiently and effectively m atl
material respecis.

oy
i

he Company first adopted this reporiing structure from the half year ended 31 December 2003,
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established two committees to assist in the execution of its duties and to allow detailed
consideration of complex issues. Current commitiees of the Board are the compensation 2nd the audit and
compliance committees. Each committee is comprised entirely of non-executive directors.

All matters determined by committees are submitted lo the full Board as recommendations for final Board
decision. Minutes of committee meetings are tabled at a2 subsequent Board meeting. Additional
requirements for specific reporting by the committees to the Board are addressed in the charter of the
individual commiitee.

There is no formal nomination commitiee for the Company. Nominations for the Board are considered by
the full Board as part of normal business reviewed by the Board at its regular meetings.

Under the Board Charter, in the event that the Board believes a new director should be appoeinted, the
Board shall review the range of skills, experience and expertise currently existing on the Board in relation to
areas of current and fuiure importance to the Company as it grows. Candidates are assessed against this
review of needs and, where appropriate, advice is sought from independent search consultants.

Where the Board appoints a suitable candidate that person must stand for election at the next AGM of the
Company.,

Notices of meeting for the election of directors comply with the ASX CGC quidelines.

New directors will be provided with a lefler of appointmeni setting out the Company’s expectations, their
responsibilities, rights and the terms and conditions of their appointment.

Compensation Committee
The compensation committee consists of the following non-executive directors:

° Mr Fraser Ainsworth {(Joint Chairman)
° Dr Chrisiopher Henney {Joint Chairman)

- Details of these directors’ attendance at compensation committee meetings are set out in the Directors’
Report.

The compensation committee advises the Board on remuneration and incentive policies and practices
generally, and makes specific recommendations on remuneration packages and other terms of employment
for executive directors and non-executive directors.

Each member of the senior executive leam signs a formai employment contract at the time of their
appointment covering a range of matters including their duties, rights, responsibilities and any entitlements
on termination. A formal establishment of annual objectives and subsequent evaluation of performance
including half-year review is conducted by the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director with all senior
executives who report directly to that position.

Further information on directors’ and executives' remuneration is set out in the Directors’ Report and note
18 to the financial statements.

The compensation commiitee has responsibility for reviéwing any transactions between the Company and
the directors, or any interest associated with the directors, {0 ensure the structure and the terms of the
transaction are in compliance with the Corporations Act 2001 and are appropriately disclosed.
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Audit and Compliance Committee
The audit and compliance commitiee consists of the lollowing non-executive directors:

° Nir Peter Maddern (Chairman)
e Mr Fraser Ainsworth
s Dr George Morstyn

Details of these directors’ qualifications and attendance at audit and compliance committee meetings are
set out in the Directors’ Report.

The audit and compliance committee as a group possesses both relevant financial qualifications and
experience and an understanding, based on appropriate experience, of the biotech industry in which the
Company cperates.

The audit and compliance committee has its own charter setting out its role and responsibilities,
composition, structure, membership requirements and the manner in which the commitiee is to operate.
This charter is available on the Company website. The main responsibilities of the committee are to:

. review, assess and recommend to the Board the annual financial report and the half-year financial
report.
° assist the Board in fulfilling its oversigh! responsibilities through reviewing:

- the financial reponting process,

~  the system of internal control and management of financial risks,

~  the audit process; and,

— the Company's process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations.

Included in these responsibilities, the audit and compliance committee:

° reviews the external auditors’ proposed audit scope and approach and their performance.
. makes recommendations to the Board regarding the re-appointment of the external auditors.
. considers the independence of the external auditors including the range of non-audit related services

provided by the external auditors to the Company.
In fulfilling its respensibilities, the audit and compliance committee:

. receives regular reports from management and external auditors.

. meets with external auditors at least twice a year or more frequently if necessary.

. reviews whether management is adopting systems and processes sufficient for a company of
Bionomics' size and stage of development.

. reviews any significant disagreements between the external auditors and management, irrespective
of whether they have been resoived.

. meets separately with external auditors at jeast twice a year without the presence of management.

. provides external auditors with a clear line of direct communication at any time to either the Chairman
of the audit and compliance commitiee or the Chairman of the Board.

The audil and compliance committee has authority, within the scope of its responsibilities, 10 seek any
information it requires from any employee or externzi party and to obtain exiernal legal or other professional
advice.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Board's paiicy is 10 appoint external auditors who ciearly demonsirate quality ancd independence. The
performance of the external auditor is reviewed annually by the audil and compliance committee which also
makes recommendations to the Board about the appointment of audit services for subsequent periods,
taking intc consideration assessment of performance, exisiing value and costs. PricewaternouseCoopers
were appointec as the exiernal audilors in 1986. It is PricawaierhouseCoopers policy to rotaie audit
engagemant pariners on lisied companies at least every seven years, and in accordance with that policy a
new audit engagement pariner wili be infroduced for the year ended 30 June 2005. The Company is
reviewana this policy with PricewsierhouseCoopers in view of the Federal Governments intention ©
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An analysis of fees paid to the external auditors, including a breakdown of fees for non-audit services, is
provided in note 19 to the financial statements. It is the policy of the external auditors 10 provide an annual
deciaration of their independence 1o both the audii and compliance commitiee and the Board.

The external auditor is requesied to attend the AGM and be availahle to answer shareholder questions
about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and conteni of the audit report.

RISK ASSESSMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board, through the audit and compliance committee, is responsible for ensuring there are adeguate
policies in relation to risk management, compliance and internal control systems. In summary, Company
policies are designed to ensure significant strategic, operational, legal, reputational and financial risks are
identified, assessed, and effectively monitored and managed in a manner sufficient for a company of
Bionomics' size and stage of development to enable achievement of the Company's business strategy and
objectives.

The Company's risk management policies are managed by the executive management team and are
reviewed by the audit and compliance committee according o a timetable of assessment and review
proposed by that committee and approved by the Board.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Company recognises the imporiance of occupational health and safety (OH&S) and is committed 1o the
highest levels of performance. To help meet this objective, policies have been established to facilitate the
systematic identification of OH&S issues and to ensure they are managed in a structured manner. This
system allows the Company to.

. monitar its compliance with all relevant legislation; and
. encourage employees to actively participate in the management of OH&S issues.

The Company is in full compliance with all necessary environmenial and other licensing requirements
required for its research facility in Thebarton, South Australia.

CODE OF CONDUCT

In its Board Charter, the Board has recognised its overriding responsibility to act honestly, fairly, diligently,
and in accordance with the law in fulfiling its primary responsibility of looking after the interests of
Bionomics’ shareholders. The Board believes that the interests of sharehoiders are best served by also
taking into account the interesis of other stakeholders such as Bionomics' employees and individuals
engaged in Bionomics' directed research at Bionomics' affiliated institutions.

The Board will work to promote and maintain an environment within Bionomics that establishes these
principles as basic guidelines for ali of its employees.

Ouring 2004/05 Bionomics will formalise a code of business conduct and ethics. A number of policies which
relate {0 business conduct are already in place including harassment prevention and share trading.

Copies of the share trading policies for directors and for employees are available on the Company's
website.

CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE AND SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Company has written policies and procedures on information disclosure that focus on continuous
disclosure of any information concerning the Company that a reasonable person would expect to have a
material effect on the price of the Company's securities. These policies and procedures also include the
arrangements the Company has in place o promote communication with sharehalders and encourage
effective participation al general mestings. These policies and procedures arg available on the Company's
website.

The Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director has been nominated as the person responsibie for
communications with the ASX. This role includes responsibliity for ensunng compliance with the continuous
disclosure requirements in the ASX Listing Rules and oversesing and co-ordinating information disclosure
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All announcements disclosed lo the ASX are posted on the Company’'s web site as soon as practical afler
disclosure to the ASX. Procedures have also been established for reviewing whether any price sensitive
infarmation has been inadvertently disclosed, and if so, this information is also immediately released to the
market.

All shareholders receive a copy of the Company’s annual report. In addition, the Company seeks to provide
opportunities for shareholders to participate through electronic means. Recent initigtives to facilitate this
include making all Company announcements, details of Company meetings, press releases for the last
three years, and financial reports available on the Company's website along with transcripts io the
Chairman's and Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director's addresses to the Company's AGMs.

The website also includes a feedback and information request mechanism for investors and shareholders
via the Contact Us page of the website.

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)
Information relating to the impact of IFRS is set out in note 1(o}) to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your directors present their report on the financiat statements of the Company for the financial year ended
30 June 2004.

Directors
The following persons were directors of Bionomics Limited during the whole of the financial year and up to
the daie of this report:

°© Mr Fraser Ainsworth AM, Chairman

° Dr Deborah Rathjen, Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
® Dr Christopher Henney, Non-Executive Director
° Mr Peter Maddern, Non-Executive Director

J Dr George Morstyn, Non-Executive Director

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company during the financial year were:

(a) toidentify particular genes or the proteins they encode that can be shown to have a role in the onset
or progression of disease. in particular epilepsy, breast cancer and pathologies associated with
angiogenesis.

(b) to velidate these genes and proteins as drug targets through the utilisation of the Company’s
proprietary technology platforms, ionX® and Angene™,

(c) 1o underteke drug discovery with the aim of developing clinical drug candidates.

{d) toinvestigate and develop diagnostic product opportunities that may provide nearer term revenue for
the Company.

(e) theidentification of strategic alliances and project opportunities capable of enhancing the competitive
advantage of the Company within the genomics sector of the biotechnology industry.

Operating Results
The operaling loss of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2004 amounted to $3.574,582 in line with
expectations and $966,373 less than the loss incurred in the prior year of $4,540,955.

Dividends
The directors do not propose to make any recommendation for dividends for the current financial year.

Review of Operations
Epilepsy Diagnostic Development

In collaboration with researchers at the Austin Hospital in Melbourne and the Wamen's and Children's
Hospital in Adelaide, the Company has progressed clinical studies on two forms of childhood epilepsy. The
_clinical studies have provided the basis for the further development of gene diagnostic tests for Severe
Myoclonic Epilepsy in Infancy (SMEL and Benign Familial Neonatal infantile Spasms (BFNIS).

In paraliel with its clinical program the Company has progressed patent applications that underpin the
development and commercialisation of products to diagnose different forms of epilepsy:

¢ on 14 October 2003, the Campany announced the filing of a provisional patent application covering the
diagnosis of BFNIS. The patent application includes data from a clinical study conducted in various
sites in Australia and Europe. As announced by the Company on 22 March 2004, results of this
international clinical study were published in the scientific journal Annals of Neurology.

o the Company's development of a diagnostic test for SME! is suppoited by a number of patent filings,
including a series of patent applications lodged in the US and elsewhere as announced on 10 March
2004. These patent filings describe propneiary genetic information and methods that will allow the
diagnosis of SMEL On 8 danuary 2004 the Company announced that a key patent applicahion covaring
approximately 80% of Bionomics’ gene discoveries resulling from its epilepsy clinical pragram has
entered the national phases of examination. This patent application includes the ideniification of genes
responsibie for common paediatric epilepsies.

o on 11 September 2003, the Company announced thai it had made 2 provisiona! patent application that
covered genslic changes in an ion channel reguialing gene identified in patienis with photosensitive
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epitepsy, a form of epilepsy in which seizures are triggered by flickering light, affecting primarily children
between five and 15 years.

Drug Discovery and CNS Research

During 2003/04 the Company initiated its drug discovery program, putiing in place the nucleus of its drug
discovery group and forming coltabarations with The Walter and Eliza Hall Institute and Southern Cross
University to access compound libraries and chemisiry expertise. The Company also formed a strategic
partnership with PerkinElmer ingc, in which Bionomics will act as a reference site for PerkinEimer's cellular
drug screening platforms in the Asian market.

Bionomics and PerkinElmer are coﬂaborating on the evaluation and optimisation of new ion channel drug
discovery reagents and Bionomics is incorporating PerkinElmer's technologies into its drug discovery
program. Bionomics' drug discovery program is funded in part by an R&D Start Grant of $2.87 million over
two years which commenced July 2003. The focus of our drug discovery effort is to discover new lead
molecules for the treatment of central nervous system (CNS) disorders including epilepsy and anxiety. Our
detailed knowledge of the GABA receptor has enabled Bionomics to extend iis proprietary CNS drug
discovery platform ionX® to encompass the discovery of drugs to treat anxiety in addition to epilepsy.
Anxiety disorders are the most common psychiatric illnesses affecting both children and adults. An
estimated two million Australians suffer from a clinically diagnosed anxiety disorder whilst an estimated 19
million adult Americans suffer from diagnosed anxiety disorders.

A highlight of the Company's CNS research program was the development of its second animal model of
inherited human epilepsy. This model, which displays symptoms of absence epilepsy, incorporates a
genetic change identified in human patients and displays similar EEG patierns as humans with absence
epilepsy. This new animal model adds another dimension to Bionomics' drug discovery Lapdblhlles
providing an additional proprietary animal model for drug evaluation.

This year, Bionomics extended its research and clinical network in the US through the establishment of
collaboration with The Brigham and Women'’s Hospital Inc, a teaching hospital of Harvard Medical School
and its CNS research collaborators at the Howard Florey institute in Melbourne. The collaboration secured
a grant from the US National Institutes of Heath to support further research on Bionomics' animal models of
epilepsy.

In February 2004, the Company announced a $6 million capital raising mainly to support its drug discovery
program. This successful capital raising was strongly supported by shareholders.

Cancer Research
Bionomics now has a total of 15 patent applications covering over 800 cancer and angiogenesis related
genes. These patent applications cover diagnostic and therapeutic utility of the gene discoveries.

Many of the genes identified in Bionomics' cancer program are involved in the process of angiogenesis or
blood vessel growth. Bionomics is validating the genes it has discovered using the leading edge
technologies and modeis which comprise the Company’s Angene™ platform and, on 24 June 2004, the
Company announced that data on Bionomics' drug target BNOS9 were presented in the US. Bicnomics’
findings indicate that the effecis of several pro-angiogenic growth {actors are blocked by BNOBS specific
gene silencing molecuies. As current therapeutics targeting angiogenesis are aimed at inhibiting the VEGF
pathway, BNOB9 may provide a new and potentially more effective target for inhibiting angiocgenesis.

BNOG64 is a candidate breast cancer tumour suppressor gene identified by Bionomics and, on 15 October
2003, the Company announced that it had refined a diagnostic method for the detection of BNOB4 in breast
cancer cells. The work has enabled technical difficulties in delecting BNOG4 reported last year to be
overcome and the data indicates that this method may be useful in determining the prognosis of early stage
breast cancers. Further research is ongoing to validate BNOB4 as a diagnostic/prognostic marker for breast
cancer.

Earnings Per Share

2004 Centis 2003 Cents
Bagic earnings per share (7.4} {11.3)
Aliernaiive earnings per share 5.2} (5.7}
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The alternative earnings per share amounts have been calculated to demonstrate the impact on basic
earnings per share sheuld all options on issue at 30 June 2004 be converted o ordinary shares.

The basic and alternative earnings per share amountis have been calculated using the 'Total change in
equity other than those resulting from transactions with owners as owners’ figure in the statement of
financial performance.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs
Significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the financial year were as follows:

2004
$
(a) Anincrease in contributed equity of $5,790,383 (from $20,364,825 to
$26,155,308) as a result of:
issue of 137,256 fully paid ordinary shares @ 34 cents each to non- 46,667
executive directors in lieu of cash

Share placement of 12,460,000 fully paid ordinary shares @ 32 cents each 3.987,200
and issuance of 6,230,000 50 cent listed options, expiring 31 July 2007,

atlached to the placement shares. One option was granted for every two

crdinary shares issuved in the placement.

Entitiements issue of 7,132,946 fully paid ordinary shares @ 32 cents each 2.282.542
as a result of the entitiements issue announced on 27 February 2004. issue

of 3,566,567 lisled options. expiring 31 July 2007, attached tc the

entitlements issue shares. One option was granted for every two ordinary

shares issued in the entitiements issue. .

Conversion of 673 of the 50 cent listed options issued above 336
Gross funds raised by share issues and conversion of listed options 6,316,745
Less transaction costs arising on share and listed option issues 526,362
Net increase in share capital 5,790,383

(b) Net cash received from the increase in contributed equity amounting to
$5,743,716 will be used to continue to fund existing project activities
including the expansion of the business into drug discovery for epilepsy and
anxiety.

Matters Subsequent to the End of the Financial Year

On 6 July 2004, the Company announced that its Chairman, Mr Fraser Ainsworth had advised the Board of
his intention to relinquish his Chairman’s role within the next few months and that he would be retiring as a
non-executive director by the Company’s AGM in November 2004. The Company is presently undertaking a
search for 2 new Chairman.

On 11 August 2004, the Company issued an invitation letter to Dr Deborah Rathjen, to acquire 75,000
options under the Bionomics Employee Share Option Plan (the Bionomics ESOP). The issue of these
options is subject to shareholder approval at the 2004 AGM.

Except for these items discussed above, no other matters or circumstances have ansen since 30 June 2004
that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect:

{a) the Company's operations in fulure financial years, or
{b) the resulis of those operations in future financiai years, or
{¢) the Company’s state of affairs in fulure financial years.

Likely Developments and Expected Resuits of Operations

The Company will continue to discover genes associaled with human disezse and wili ssek to
commercialise the ouicomes of its research ang deveiopment in the form of diagnostic products and drugs
for the trealment of disease. Further details on likely developmenis and sxpecied results of cpergtiors are

outlined in the front section of the 2004 Annual Report. A
!
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Further information on likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of
operztions have not been included in this report because further disclosure would not be in the Company’s

best interests.

Environmental Regulation

During the pzst financial year, the Company became subject to environmental regulation and other licenses
in respect of ifs research facilities in Thebarton, South Australia. The Company is subject to reguiar
inspections and audits by responsible State and Federal authorities. The Company was in compliance with
all the necessary environmental regulations throughout 2003/04 and no related issues have arisen since the
end of the financial year to the date of this report.

information on Directors

Director

Experience

Special
responsibilities

Chairman — non-executive and independent director

Mr Fraser Ainsworth AM
Bcomm, FAICD, FCPA

Executive

Dr Debarah Rathjen

Bsc{Hons), PhD

Chairman for six
years. Director
of several
companies,
Forimer
Managing
Director of
SAGASCO
Holdings Ltd.

Managing
Director for four
years. Former
General
Manager of
Business
Development
and Licensing at
Peptech Limited.

Non-executive and independent directors

Dr Christopher Henney

PhD, BSc

Mr Peter Maddern

MM, LLB, BEc

Dr George Morstyn MB

8BS, PhD, FRACP

Non-executive
director for six
years. Former
co-founder, CEO
& Chairman of
several US
biotech
companies.
Non-executive
director for five
years.

Formerly
executive
director for three
vears
MNon-execulive
director for three
vears. Former

. TP A Y Lol

Chairman of the
Board.

Joint Chairman of
compensalion
committee.

Member of audit and

compliance
committee

Chief Executive
Officer and
Managing Director

Joint Chairman of

compensation
committee.

Chairman of audit
and compliance
commitiee.

Member of gudii and

compliance
commiiles.

Particulars of
Directors’ interests in
shares and options:

Ordinary  Options

shares

229,399

244,759

286,566

481,494

347,623

1

14,33¢
listed

2.200,000
unlisted
14,047
listed

200.000
uniisted
30,477

LI S §
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President of

Development

and Chief

Medical Officer

of Amgen inc.
fieetings of Directors
The numbers of meetings of the Company's Board and of each Board committee held during the year
ended 30 June 2004, and the numbers of meetings attended by each director were:

Full meetings of Meetings of non- Meetings of committees
directors executive
directors
Audit Compensation
A B A B A B A B
Mr Fraser Ainsworth 12 12 3 3 4 4 3 3
Dr Deborah Rathjen 12 12 o o oo
Dr Christopher Henney 12 11 3 3 oo 3 3
Mr Peter Maddern 12 12 3 3 4 4 oo
Dr George Morstyn 2 1 3 3 4 4 B
A= Number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the committee
during the year and was entitled to attend.
B= Number of meetings attended.

Not a non-executive director.
= Not a member of the relevant committee.

E 24

Retirement, Election and Continuation in Office of Directors

Mr Fraser Ainsworth intends to retire as both Chairman and non-executive director by the 11 November
2004 AGM. Dr George Morstyn is the director retiring by rotation in accordance with clause 46 of the
Constitution who, being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

Remuneration Report
Information relating to the remuneration of directors and executives is set out in nole 18 to the financial
statements.

Loans te Directors and Executives
There were no loans to any directors or executives during the financial year ended 30 June 2004,

Shares and Share Options Granted to Directors and the Executives of the Company

Shares and unlisted options over unissued ordinary shares of Bionomics granted during or since the end of
the financial year to any of the directors or the executives of the Company as part of their remuneration
were as follows:

Grant or issue date Shares Options
issued+ granted++
Directors
Mr Fraser Ainsworth 6 November 2003 48,020 0
Dr Christopher Henney 6 November 2003 29,412 0
Mr Peter Magdern 6 November 2003 29,412 0
Dr George Morstyn - 6 November 2003 29,412 0
Executives
Mr Lee Craker, Chief Financig! Officer 1 March 2004 0 500,000
irs Jill Mashade, Company Secreiary 24 December 2003 0 35,000
Mr Francis Placanica. Vice President S January 2004 0 20,600
Business Deveiopment
*+ Shares issued to direciors were in hieu of a proporiion of directors’ fees approved by sharsholders at

the Company’s 2003 AGM.

A4
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++  Options to Mrs Jill Mashado and Mr Francis Placanica were granied pursuant to annual performance
reviews. Mr Lee Craker's options were granted in relation to his employment agreement.

Shares under Option
Information relating to shares under option is sat out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Shares Issued on the Exercise of Options
No ordinary shares of Bionomics were issued during the year ended 30 June 2004 on the exercise of
options granted under the Bionomics ESOP.

On 17 June 2004, 2.1 million unlisted options issued to current and past directors expired without being
exercised.

Insurance of Officers
During the financial year, Bionomics paid a premium to insure the directors and officers {(D&0O) of the
Company. Under the terms of this policy the premium paid by the Company is not permitted to be disclosed.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that
may be brought against the D&O in their capacity as D&QO of the Caompany, and any other payments arising
from liabilities incurred by the D&O in connection with such proceedings, other than where such liabilities
arise out of conduct involving a willful breach of duty by the D&0O or the improper use by the D&O of their
position or of information to gain advantage for themselves or someone else or to cause detriment to the
Company.

It is nat possible to apportion the premium between amaunts relating to the insurance against legal costs
and those relaling to other liabilities.

Non-Audit Services
The Company may decide to employ the external auditor on assignments additional to their statutory audit
duties where the external auditor's expertise and experience with the Company are important.

Details of the amounts paid to the external auditar {PricewaterhouseCoopers) for audit and non-audit
services provided during the year are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

The Board has considered the position and, in accordance with the advice received from the audit and
compliance committee, is satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services is compatible with the general
standard of independence for external auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The directors are
satisfied that the provision of non-audit services by the external auditor, as set out below, did not
compromise the external auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following
reasons:

° all non-audit services have been reviewed by the audit and compliance commitiee to ensure they do
not impact the integrity and objectivity of the external auditor.

. none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in
Professional Statement F1, including reviewing or audiling the external auditor's own work, acting in a
management or a decision-making capacity for the Company, acting as advocate for the Company or
jointly sharing economic risk and rewards.

External Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

| }? ’f‘,% N A 4 e -
Vot e

i,

Fraser Ainsworth AM Beborah Rathjen
Chairman Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
Adelaide

SN Arimiet OROA
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

Note 2004 2003

$ $
Revenue from ordinary activities 3 1,082,094 1,607,756
Borrowing costs expense 317,669 302,411
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 517,773 681,568
Employee and director benefits expenses 859,147 645,010
Legal expenses 107,236 55,554
Research and development expenses . 3,107,534 3,732,031
Sharehclder and investor communications expenses 72.844 145,840
Travel expenses 155,448 175,722
Other expenses from ordinary aclivities 419,025 410,575
Loss from ordinary activities before related income tax expense 4 (3,574,582) (4,540,955)
Income tax expense 5 0 0
Loss from ordinary activities after related income tax expense (3.574,582) (4,540,955)
Total changes in equity other than those resulting from (3,574,582) {4,540,955)
transactlions with owners as owners
Basic earnings per share 25 (7.4) (11.3)
Alternative earnings per share ' 25 (5.2} (8.7)

The above staiement of financial perfformance should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2004
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CURREMT ASSETS

Cash assets
Receivables
Other

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Propenty, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables

Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions

Other

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

interest bearing liabilities
Payables

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

JOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

SHAREHOLDERS'® EQUITY

Contributed equity
Accumulated losses

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

14
32
13
14

12

11

15
16

2004 2003
] $
8.703.415 6,070,486
135,363 27.470
131,927 105,297
8,970,705 6.203.253
5,976,729 6,310,723
14,178 56,711
5,990,907 6.367.434
14,961,612 12,570,687
524,166 350,149
508.400 508,400
146,933 95324
225.622 276 124
1.405.121 1,229,897
4,575,600 4,575,600
50,000 50,000
4,625,600 4,625.600
6,030,721 5,855 597
8.930.891 6.715.090
26,155,308 20,364,925
. (17.224.417) (13.649,835)
8.930,891 6,715,090




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004
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Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Grants received
Rent received
Receipts from cusiomers
Goods and Services Tax collected from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Goods and Services Tax paid to suppliers
Goods and Services Tax refund received from ATQO

Interest received
Borrowing costs

Net cash (outflow) from operating activities 23
Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of piant and equipment
Payments for purchases of property, plant & eguipment

Net cash (outflow) from investing activities
Cash flows frem financing activities
Proceeds from share issues
Share issue expenses
Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net increasel/(decrease) in cash held
Cash at the beginning of the financial year

Cash at the end of the financial year &

Non-cash financing activities 24

The above statament of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noies.

2004 2003
$ $
inflows Inflows
{Outflows) (Outflows}
1,453,872 926,89¢
119,283 172,194
68,259 80,208
162,683 108,595
(4,633,184) (4,987,561)
(260,113} (246,817)
50,411 151,181
{3.038,789) {3,795,301)
286,980 366,860
(231,840) (302,411)
{2,983,649) (3,730,852)
87.000 0
{214,138) {43,301)
(127,138) (43,301)
6,270,078 1,248,680
(526,362) (28.160)
5,743,716 1,220.520
2,632,929 (2,553,633)
6,070,486 8,624,119
8,703,415 6,070,486
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 JUNE 2004

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This general purpese financial report has been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Ausiralian Accounling Standards Board, Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views and the
Corporations Act 2001, including the Australian Securities and Investmenis Commission guidelines to valuing share
options in annusl! directors’ reports released on 18 June 2004,

It is prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention. Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies
adopted are consistent with those of the previous year.

(a) Income Tax
Tax effect accounting procedures are followed whereby the income tax expense in the statement of
financial performance is matched with the accounting loss after allowing for permanent differences. The
future tax benefit relating to tax losses is not carried forward as an asset unless the benefit is virtually
certain of realisation. Income tax on cumulative timing differences is set aside to the deferred income tax or
the future income tax benefit accounts at the rates that are expected to apply when those timing differences
reverse.

{b) Revenue Recognition
Licensing fees, rent revenue and interest income are recognised upon being earnt as opposed to received.

Grant revenue is recognised when Bionomics has incurred the eligible grant expenditure.

{c) Receivables
All trade debtors are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are due for settlement no more than 30
days from the date of recognition.

Collectibility of trade debtors is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible
are written off. A provision for doubtful debts is raised when some doubt as to collection exists.

{d) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are brought to account at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation or amorlisalion. The directors have taken reasonable steps to ensure that property, plant and
equipment are not carried at amounts that are in excess of their recoverable amounis at balance dale.

The depreciable amount of ali fixed assets is depreciated over their useful lives commencing from the time
the asset is held ready for use, on either a prime or diminishing value basis depending on the type of asset.

The gain or loss on disposal of all fixed assets is determined as the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset at the time of disposal and the proceeds of disposal. and is included in the operating result
before income tax of the Company in the year of disposal.

The depreciation rates for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of fixed asset Depreciation rate
Administrative plant and eguipment 20-40%
Scientific plant and eguipment 20-40%
Leasehold improvements 10-20%
Land 0%
Building 2.50%
Building components 3-20%
{e) Resecarch and Development

osts incusr arch a evelopment have been charged as expensc inc .
Costs incurred on research and development b been charged as expenses as incurred

s
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 JUNE 2004

(9 Revaluations of Non-Current Assets
The land and building were recorded as non-current assets in March 2002, and are currently recorded at
estimated final cost. This figure will be adjusied to reflect the actual final cost as soon as this figure is
known. A valuation for the land and building will be determined by an independent valuer once every three
years and disclosed in the Company’s financial report as long as they continue o be carried at cost in the
financial statements.

{@) Intangible Assets
Licences
Significant costs associated with licences are deferred and amortised on a straight line basis over five years,
the period of their expected benefit.

{h) Employee Entitiements
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settied
within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in liabilities in respect of employees’ services up {o
the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected (o be paid when the liabilities are settied.

Contributions are made by the Company to employee superannuation funds and are charged as expensas
when incurred. These contributions are made to external superannuation funds and are not defined benefits
pragrams. Consequently the Company has no exposure to market movements on employee
superannuation liabilities or entitlements.

As at 30 June 2004, the Company had 24 employees {2003 — 20). This figure excludes persons engaged
under service contract agreements with the Company's affiliated research institutes and persons engaged
under a consultancy agreement.

Bionomics Limited Empioyee Share Option Plan

The Bionomics Limited Employee Share Option Plan (the Bionomics ESOP) was approved by the Board
and Shareholders in 2002. Staff eligible to participate in the plan are those who have been a full time or part
time employee of the Company for a period of not less than six months or a director of the Company.

Options are granted under the plan for no consideration.

Sign-On Optijons

Sign-on options are exercisable over a five year period with the first tranche becoming exercisabie on the
first anniversary of the date of acceptance of the invitation to participate in the plan. The employees’
entitlements to the options are vested (ie they are not conditional on future employment) as soon as they
become exercisable.

Bonus Options
Bonus options are exercisable from the date of issue.

When exercisable, each option is convertible into one ordinary share.
p

The exercise price of an oplion is based on the weighted average closing price al which the Company’s
shares are traded on the ASX during the seven trading days immediately preceding the date of an invitation.

No accounting eniries are made in relation to the Bionomics ESOP until options are exercised, at which
time the amounts receivable from employees are recognised in the siatement of financial position as
Contributed Equity. The amounts disclosed for remuneration of directors and executives in note 18 include
the independently assessed fair values of options at the date they were granted.

Summaries of gptions granted under the plan are set out in note 15(¢) Share options.

(i) Equity-based Compensation Benefils to Directors
The non-executive directors of Bionomics receive approximately cne third of their directors’ fees in shares.
The Board uses a weighted average share price {o calculate the number of shares to be issued, calcuiaied
by reference to the price at which the Company's shares traded in the first two months of the current
financial year.
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i Cash
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash inciudes cash on hand and in bank accounts and
deposits with banks, net of bank ovardrafis.

k) Trade and Other Creditors
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior 1o the end of the
financial year and which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and generally paid within 30 days of
recognition.

n interest Bearing Liabilities
Loans are carried at their principal amount and interest is accrued over the period it becomes due.

(m) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, except where they
are included in the costs of qualifying assets.

Borrowing costs include interest on shori-term and long-term borrowings.

(n) Earnings per Share
(i} Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are determined by dividing net loss afier income tax attributable to members of
the Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

{ii) Alternative earnings per share

Alternalive earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with potential
ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed o have been issued for no
consideration in relation to potential ordinary shares.

{0} International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS)
The Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) is adopting IFRS for application to reporting periods
beginning or on after 1 January 2005, The AASB will issue Ausiralian eguivalents to IFRS, and the Urgent
lssues Group will issue abstracts corresponding to IASB interpretations originated by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Commitiee. The
adoption of Australian equivalents tc IFRS will be first reflected in the Company’s financial statements for
the half-year ending 31 December 2005 and the year ending 30 June 2006.

Entities complying with Austraiian equivalents to IFRS for the first time will be required to restate their
comparative financial statements to amounts reflecting the application of IFRS to that comparative period.
Most adjustments required on transition to IFRS will be made, retrospectively, against opening retained
eamnings as at 1 July 2004.

An initial review of the implications of adopting IFRS has been conducted by management and discussed
with the audit and compliance committee.

The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary are managing the transition to Australian equivalents o
IFRS, including relevant training and system and internal control changes necessary to gather all the
required financial information. Regular updates are provided to the audit and compliance commitiee.

The major change ideniified to date thal will be required to.the Company's exisling accounting poticies
relates to equity-based compensation benefits. Under the Australian equivalent to IFRS 2 Share-based
Payments, equity-based compensation to employees will be recognised as an expense in respect of the
services received. This will result in a change to the current accounting policy, under which no expense is
recognised for equity-based compensation. :

The above should not be regarded as a complete list of changes in accounting policies that will result from
the transition {o Ausiralian equivalenis to IFRS, as not all standards have been analysed as yet, and some
sacisions have not yet been made where choices of accounting policies zie available. For these reasons, it
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is not yvet pessible to quantify the impact of the transition to Australian equivalents to IFRS on the

Company's financial pesition and reported results.

NOTE 2: SEGMENT INFORMATION

Bionomics Limited, which operatles solely in Australia, conducts genomics-based research focused on diagnostic

product development and drug discovery in CNS disorders and cancer.

NGTE 3: REVENUE

Revenue from operating activities
Grants received
Licensing fees

Revenue from outside the operating activities
Interest received or receivable

Rent received or receivable

Sale of non-current asset

Other income

Revenue from ordinary activities

NOTE 4: OPERATING RESULT

Net gains and expenses

Loss from ordinary activities before related income tax expense
includes the following specific net gains and expenses:

Net gains
Net gains on disposal of plant and equipment

Expenses
Borrowing costs
- Interest paid or payable

Depreciation of:

- Administrative plant and eguipment
- Scientific plant and equipment

- Building

Amortisation of non-current assets
- Licences

Rental expense on operating leases
- Minimum lease payments

Research and development
- Research and development costs

Other provisions
- Employee entillements

NOTE 5: INCOME TAX

(2) The prima facie tax on operating loss is reconciied to the
income ax provided in the financial siatemen:s as follows:

Prima facie tex benefit on operating results at 30%

2004 2003
$ $
1,425,095 1,028,243
104.703 80,208
1,529,798 1,108,451
309.454 333,019
127,449 161,401
14,108 0
2,185 4,885
453,196 499,305
1,982,994 1,607,756
14.108 0
317,669 302,411
23,241 28,021
227.013 386,027
224 986 224,986
475,240 639,034
42,533 42,534
0 72,756
3.107.534 3,732.031
51,609 34,566
(1072,375) (1,362,287}
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Tax effect of permanent differences:
- Research and development expendilure
- R&D incremenial deduction
- Other non-ailowabie items
Income tax adjusted for permanent differences

Under/(Over) provision in prior year

Income tax benefit not recognised
Income tax expense

(b) The directors estimate that the potential future income tax
benefit not brought to account in respect of tax losses is:

This benefit for tax losses will only be obtained if:

(i)  the Company derives future assessable income of a
nalure and amount sufficient to enable the benefit
from the deductions for the losses to be realised;
and

(i)  the Company continues to comply with the
conditions of deductibility imposed by tax legisiation;
and

(i) nochanges in tax legisiation adversely affect the
Company in realising the benefit from the deductions
for tax losses.

NOTE 6: CASH

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of
cash flows is reconciled to items in the statement of financial
position as follows:

Cash at bank and on hand
Deposits at call

NOTE 7: RECEIVABLES
CURRENT
Other debtors

NOTE 8: OTHER ASSETS
CURRENT

Prepayments

Accrued revenue

NOTE 9: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
NON-CURRENT

Adminisirative piant and equipment - at cost
Accumulated depreciation

Scientific plant and eguipment — at cost
Accumulated depreciation

Building - st estimated cost

2004 2003
$ $
(28,424) (149,844)
0 (194,706}
908 1,473
(1.099,891) (1,705,164)
0 (93,775)
(1,099.891) (1.798,939)
0 0
5,883,210 4,792,313
141,482 162,660
8,561,933 5,907,826
8,703,415 6,070,486
135,363 27,470
75,662 71,506
56,265 33,791
131,027 105,297
196,603 196,603
£8,330 65,089
108,273 131,514
1,428,665 1.347,527
1,064,528 897,623
364,137 449,904
5.899 560 5.699,560
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2004 2003
3 $
5379319 5,604,305 _
Land - at cost 125.000 125,000
Total property, plant and equipment ' 7.649,828 7,568,690
Total accumulated depreciation 1,673,099 1,257,967
Total property, plant and equipment 5,976,729 6.310.723

The building has been recorded at estimated final cost as the actual final cost has not yet been determined by the
Land Management Corporation. A cumulative adjustment is expected to be made in the 2004/05 financial year &s
soon as the actual final cost is determined. Depreciation has been charged based on the estimated final cost.

Non-current assets pledged as security

Refer to nole 12 for information on non-current assets pledged as security by the Company.

Reconciliations

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of
the current financial year are set out below.

Administrative Scientific Land and Total
plant & plant & building
equipment eguipment
$ $ $ $
Carrying amount at 1 July 2003 131.514 449,904 5,729,305 6,310,723
Additions 0 215,903 0 215,903
Disposals 0 (74,657) - 0 (74,657)
Depreciation {note 4) (23,241) (227,013) {224,988) (475,240)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2004 108,273 364,137 5,504,319 5,976,729
NOTE 10: INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2004 2003
NON-CURRENT $ $
Licences — at cost 212,666 212,666
Accumulated amortisation 198.488 155,955
14,178 56,711
NOTE 11: PAYABLES
CURRENT
Trade creditors 524,166 350,149
NON-CURRENT
Loan from other parties (non-interest bearing) ~ 50,000 50,000
NOTE 12: INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Building loan agreement 508,400 508,400
NON-CURRENT
Buiiding loan agreement 4.575,800 4,575,600

The building loan agreement, which relates {c and is secured by the iand and building {refer note @ to the financial
statements), has inierest charged on a quarterly basis. This rate will fluctuate based on the 80 day bank bill rate.

NOTE 13: PROVISIONS 2004 2003
CURRENT $ $
Emplovee entitlements 148,833 08,324
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NOTE 14: OTHER LIABILITIES 2004 2003
$ $
Accruals 175,679 255,662
Unearned income 49,643 20,462
225,622 276,124
NOTE 15: CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
{a) issued and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares - fully paid 26,155,308 20,364,925
Number Number
Ordinary shares ~ fully paid 63,294,251 43,663,376
Movements in ordinary shares of the Company during the past two
years were as follows:
Date Details Issue Number of $
price shares
1 July 2002 Opening balance 39,328,147 19,097,738
11 November 2002 Share issue - directors fees 50.64 72,917 46,667
31 March 2003 Share issue ~ share purchase plan S0.30 1,353,282 405,871
15 April 2003 Share issue - share purchase plan $0.30 1,023,297 306,989
30 April 2003 Share issue — placement $0.30 1,785,733 535,720
Less capital raising costs associated with the {2,760)
share purchase plan
Less capital costs associated with the (25,400)
placement _
30 June 2003 Closing Balance 43,563,376 20,364,925
7 November 2003 Share issue — directors fees $0.34 137,256 46.667
1 March 2004 Share issue — placement $0.32 6,230,000 1,993,600
7 April 2004 Share issue — placement $0.32 6,230,000 1,993,600
16 April 2004 Share issue — entitlements $0.32 7,132,946 2,282,542
4 June 2004 Share issue — conversion of listed options $0.50 673 336
Less capital raising costs asscciated with the {526,362)
placement & entillements issue
30 June 2004 Closing Balance 63,294,251 26,155,308

{b) Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the

Company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled
to one vote, and upon 2 poll each share is entitled {o one vote.

{c) Share options

The Bionomics ESOP

The terms and conditions of the Bionomics ESOP are surmmarised in note 1(h) o the financiai statements.

Grant date Expiry date Exercise Balance lssued Exercised Lapsed Balance at
date at start gduring during the  during end of the
of year the year year the year year

June 2002 June 2008 $0.81 375,666 0 o 4,000 371,666
June 2009 $0.81 375,666 ] 0 4,000 371,668

June 2010 $0.81 375,667 -G 0 4,000 371,667

June 2011 50.81 375,667 ¢ 0 4.000 371.667

June 2012 50.81 375,667 0 0 4.030 371.6G67

Februarv 2003 Fehruary 20069 $0.43 45,000 e} s} ¥ 40 000
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February 2010  50.43 40,000 0 0 30,000 10.000
February 2011 $0.43 40,000 0 0 40 000 0
February 2012  $0.43 40,000 0 0 40,000 0
February 2013  $0.43 40,000 0 0 40,000 C
December 20063 /

January 2004 January 2008 $0.30 0 147,000 0 0 147,000
January 2010 $0.30 0 15,000 0 0 15,000
January 2011 $0.30 0 15000 0 0 15,000
January 2012 $0.30 0 15,000 0 0 15,000
January 2013 $0.30 0 15,000 0 0 15.000
January 2014 $0.30 0 15,000 0 0 15,000
March 2004 March 2010 $0.37 0 107,000 0 0 107,000
March 2011 §0.37 0 107.000 0 0 107,000
March 2012 $0.37 0 107.000 0 0 107.000
March 2013 $0.37 0 107,000 0 0 107,000
March 2014  $0.37 0 107,000 0 0 107,000
March 2010  $0.38 0 5,000 0 0 5,000
March 2011 $0.38 0 5,000 0 0 5,000
March 2012 $0.38 o] 5.000 0 0 5,000
March 2013 $0.38 0 5,000 0 0 5,000
March 2014  $0.38 0 5,000 0 0 5,000
2,078,333  782.000 0 170,000 2,690,333

Other Unlisted Options
Grant date Expiry date Exercise Balance Issued Exercised Lapsed Balanceat
date at start during during the during end of the

of year  the year year the year year
17 June 1999 17 June 2004  $0.30 1,800,000 0 0 1,800,000 0
7 November 1999 17 June 2004  $0.30 200,000 0 0 200,000 0
7 November 1998 7 November 2004  $0.50 300,000 0 Q 0 300,000
8 November 1999 8 November 2004  $0.50 1,540,000 0 0 0 1.540.000
19 April 2000 8 June 2005 $0.65 75,000 0 0 0 75,000
21 June 2000 21 June 2005 $1.00 289,600 0 0 0 289,600
4 October 2000 19 June 2007  $1.00 340,000 0 Q 0 340,000
4 October 2000 19 June 2008 $1.00 340,000 0 0 0 340,000
4 QOclober 2000 19 June 2008  $1.00 170,000 0 0 0 170,000
4 October 2000 18 June 2008 $1.40 170,000 0 0 0 170,000
4 QOctober 2000 19 June 2010 $1.40 680,000 0 0 0 680,000
18 June 2001 18 June 2006  $1.30 15.000 0 0 0 - 15,000
6 August 2001 31 July 2003 $1.40 100,000 0 0 100,000 0
12 December 2001 8 August 2007  $0.85 200,000 0 0 0 200,000
12 December 2001 14 May 2008  $1.20 60,000 0 0 0 60,000
12 December 2001 14 May 2008 $1.20 ‘40,000 0 0 0 40,000
12 December 2001 14 May 2009 $1.40 20,000 0 0 0 20,000
21 January 2002 1 January 2007  $0.79 25,000 0 0 0 25,000
3 February 2003 13 January 2008  $0.43 150,000 0 0 0 150,000
4 March 2003 4 March 2008  $0.40 201,000 100,000 0 e 301,000
14 July 2003 14 July 2008  $0.28 0 100.000 0 0 100.000
19 December 2003 18 January 2009 $0.30 0 50,000 o 0 50.00C
31 March 2004 1 April 2009 $0.30 0 25000 0 0 25,000
1 June 2004 1 January 2009 $0.25 0 150,000 0 0 150,000

_6,815.800 425000 0 2200000 5.040600
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2004 2003
number number
Options vested at the reponting date 5,179.933 5,795,266

Listed Options

During 2003/04 the Company issued 9,786,567 listed cptions. Each option is convertible into one ordinary share,
ranking equally with g\l other ordinary shares of the Company, at any time or on before 31 July 2007 at a fixed price
of $0.50. As at 30 June 2004, 673 of these options had been exercised.

{dj Entitlements issue
On 27 February 2004 the Company invited its shareholders to subscribe to an entitlements issue of
7,132,946 ordinary shares at an issue price of $0.32 per share on the basis of one share for every seven
shares held, such shares were issued 16 April 2004. The issue was underwritten.

For every two ordinary shares subscribed to in this entittement issue, the shareholder also received a listed
option at an exercise price of $0.50 per option. These listed options will expire 31 July 2007.

(e) Placement
On 23 February 2004 the Company announced the completion of a placement of 12,460,000 ordinary
shares at an issued price of $0.32 per share.

For every two ordinary shares subscribed to in the placement, the placee also received a listed option at an
exercise price of $0.50 per option. These listed options will expire 31 July 2007,

NOTE 16: ACCUMULATED LOSSES 2004 2003

$ $
Balance at the beginning of the year (13,642.835) {9,108.880)
Net loss for the year {3.574,582) {4,540,955)
Balance at the end of the year (17,224 417) {13,649,835)

NOTE 17: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

interest rate risk exposures

The entity’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity periods is set
-out in the following table.

Exposures arise predominantly from assets and liabilities bearing variable interest rates as the entity intends to hold
fixed rate assets and liabilities to maturity.

Fixed interest for:

Notes Floating One year Over one Non- Total
interest or fess to five interest
2004 rate years bearing
Financial Assets
Cash and deposits 8 427,960 8,270,320 0 5135 8,703,415
Receivables and other 7,8 0 0 0 267,290 267,280
427,960 8.270.320 0 272,425 8,970,705
Weighted average interest rate 4.65% 5.34%
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other creditors 14,13, 14 0 ¢ 0 886,721 896,721
Building loan agreement 12 5,084,000 0 0 0 5,084,000
Other loans 11 0 0 0 50,000 50,000
5,084,000 0 0 946.721 6,030,721
Weighted average interest rate 6.25%
Net financial assets (liabilities) (4.656.040) 8.270.320 0 {674,206) 2,039,984

by
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Fixed Inferest for:

Motes Floating One year  Over one Non- Yotal
interest or less to five interest
2003 rate years bearing
Financial Assets
Cash and deposits 6 497,883 5,567,906 0 4,687 6,070,486
Receivables and other 7,8 0 0 0 132,767 132,767
497,893 5,567,906 0 137,454 6,203.253
Weighted average interest rate 3.90% 4.9%
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other creditors 11,13, 14 0 0 0 721,587 721,597
Building loan agreement 12 5.084,000 0 0 0 5,084,000
Other loans 11 0 0 0 50,000 50,000
5,084,000 0 0 771697 5,855.597
Weighted average interest rate 5.93%
Net financial assets (liabilities) {4,586,107) 5,567,808 0 {634,143) 347,656

Credit Risk Exposures
The credit risk on financial assets of the entity that have been recognised on the statement of financial position is
generally the carrying amount, net of any provisions for doubtful debis.

Reconciliation of net financial assets to net assets 2004 2003

$ $
Net financial assets as above ‘ 2.939,984 347,656
Non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment 5,876,729 6,310,723
intangibles 14,178 56,711
Net assets per statement of financial position 8,930,891 6,715,090

The net fair value of financial assets and liabilities of the Company approximates their carrying amounts.

NOTE 18: DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURE

Directors

The following persons were directors of Bionomics Limited during the whole of the financial year and up to the date of
this report:

Chairman
Mr Fraser Ainsworth, Chairman

Executive Directors
Dr Deborah Rathjen. Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

Mon-Executive Directors

Dr Christopher Henney, Non-Executive Director
Mr Peter Maddern, Non-Executive Director

Dr George Morstyn, Non-Executive Director

Executives {other than directors) with the Greatest Authority for Strategic Direction and Management
The following persons were the executives with greatest authority for the sirategic direction 2nd management of the
Company (Specified Execuiives) during the financial year: ’

Name Position
Mr Lee Craker Chief Financial Officer
Mrs Jili Mashado Company Secretary ot
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Mr Francis Placanica Vice President Business Deve!opment
Dr Mark Varney Vice President Crug Discovery

Beth Mrs Jill Mashado ang Mr Francis Placanica were Specified Executives during the year ended 30 June 2003. Mr
Lee Craker commenced employment with the Company on 1 August 2003. Dr Mark Varney was employed by the
Company from 8 October 2003 until 1 June 2004,

Remuneration of Directors and Executives

Principles Used to Determineg the Nature and Amount of Remuneration

The objective of the Company's executive remuneration framework is to ensure that reward for performance is
competitive and appropriate for the results defivered. The framework aligns executive rewards with achievement of
strategic objectives and the creation of value for shareholders.

Executive remuneration and other terms of employment are determined by the Board having regard to performance,
relevant comparative informaticn and the Campany’s financial performance.

Remuneration packages are set at levels that are intended to attract and retain first class executives capable of
managing the Company's operations and achieving the Company's strategic objectives.

The framewaork provides a mix of base cash remuneration and performance-based remuneration through the
Bionomics ESOP in order to align the interests of executives with those of sharehoiders.

Non-Executive Directors :

Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands that are made on and the responsibilities of, the
directors. Non-executive directors’ fees were reviewed in February 2004. The Board reviewed directors’ fees to
ensure non-executive directors’ fees were appropriate and commensurate with the Australian biotech market and
within the confines of the current shareholder approved aggregate limit of $200,000.

Nan-executive directors may receive share options at the time of their initial appointment lo the Board. To preserve
the cash resources of the Company, all non-executive direciors have opted to receive approximately one third of their
remuneration in Bionomics shares, which are issued following shareholder approval at an AGM.

Directors' Fees

Non-executive directors’ fees are delermined within an aggregate directors’ fee pool limit that is periodically
recommended for approval by shareholders under the Constitution. The current aggregate directors’ fee pool limit is
$200,000. As a result of the February 2004 review, the Chairman and non-executive directors’ fees are respectively
565,000 and $41,000 pa inclusive of superannuation. The Chairman of the audit and compliance commitiee, Mr Peter
Maddern, receives an additional $10,000 pa inclusive of superannuation for services relating to his audil and
compliance committee duties.

Retirement Allowance for Directors
The Company does not provide retirement allowances for its non-executive directors.

Executive Remuneration
The executive pay and reward framework has three components:

. a cash remuneration package, including superannuation and other entitiements.
e longer-term incentives through participation in the Bionomics ESOP.
© in exceptional circumstances, a cash bonus may be paid.

The combination of these comprises the executive's tolal remuneration.

Base Remuneration

The cash remuneration package of execulives is structured as a lotal empioymen! cost package that may be
delivered as a mix of cash and prescribed salary sacrifice benefits at the executive’s discretion, inclusive of
superannuation.

Remuneration ievels are reviewed annually and an assessment made agsainst market comparable roles balanced with
individua! executive pedormance and the Company's financial position. An executive’'s remuneraiion may also be
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reviewed on promotion. The compensation committee reviews the salary of the Chief Executive Officer and Managing
Director and executives directly reporting to the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director and makes
recommendations to the Board. The Board approves the salary of the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
and all executives direclly reporting to the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director,

There are no guaranteed base pay increases for senior executives.

Retirement Benefits

Retirement benefits through superannuation are paid for all Company employees in line with Australian
superannuation legislative requirements to funds nominated by the individual employee. The Company does not have
any on going respensibility for the individual employee superannuation and does not have in place a defined benefits
plan for employees.

The Bionomics ESOP
Information on the Bionomics ESOP is set out in note 1(h) to the financial statements.

Details of Remuneration

Details of the remuneration of each director of Bionomics Limited and each of the specified executives (these
specified execulives are the same cfficers of the Company receiving the highest emoluments for the year ended 30
June 2004) are set out in the following tables.

Details of options granted {o and exercised by directors during the year ended 30 June 2004 are set out further in this
noie.

Directors
Primary Post Equity
employment
Name Cash Non- Super Shares* | Options Total
salary and | monetary | annuation
fees benefits
$
$ $ $ $ $
Mr Fraser Ainsworth 41,590 0 4,493 16,667 0| 62,750
Dr Deborah Rathjen 270,183 18,820 11,002 0 94,275 | 394,280
Dr Christopher Henney 28,250 0 0 10.000 0] 38250
Mr Peter Maddern 35,711 0 3,664 10,000 0] 49,375
Dr George Morstyn 26.330 0 2,820 10.000 01 39.180
Total 402,064 18,820 21,979 46,667 94,275 | 583,805

*‘Approximately one third of non-executive director's fees are paid via the issuance of shares to these directors as a
direct measure to conserve cash for the Company. lssuance of these shares is subject to the approval by
shareholders at an AGM.

Specified Executives

Primary Post Equity
employment
Name Cash salary Non- Super- Options*® Total
and fees monetary annuation
benefits
$ $ $ 3 $

Mr Lee Crakes” 134,832 22,367 9,368 11.058 177,726
Chief Financial Officer
frs Jilt Mashado 82,721 0 7,478 Z24,424
Company Secretary |
{ Mr Francis Placanica 84,433 22,726 8,319 | 30,062 | 155,540
Vice President
Business Development |

N RA mrlr Ve moa s ® . O ANG

114,623 |
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Vice President Drug
Discovery
Total 396,554 55,794 32,344 65,545 550,237

‘Mr Lee Craker joined the Company in August 2003. Dr Mark Varney joined the Company in October 2003 and
resigned on 1 June 2004. Ali other executives were employees for the full financial year.

**Options are granted to executive directors and other executives under the Bionomics ESOP, details of which are set
out in note 1(h) of the financial statements.

The amounts disclosed as remuneration relating to options above are the assessed fair values at grant date of those
options allocated equally over the period from grant date o vesling date. Fair values at grant date are independently
determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing mode! that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the vesting and performance criteria, the impact of ditution, the non-tradeable nature of the option, the share
price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free
imerest rate for the term of the option.

Listed options issued to directors as part of their participation as shareholders in the entitiements issue announced on
27 February 2004 are excluded from the above remuneration.

Service Agreements
Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Chief Executive Officer and the specified execulives are
formalised in service agreements. Major provisions of the agreements relating to remuneration are set out below:

Dr Deborah Rathjen, Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

. term of agreement - five years commencing 19 June 2000.

o total remuneration package for the year ended 30 June 2004 of $300,000, to be reviewed annually by the
compensation commitlee and approved by the board.

. payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer without cause, varies depending on time

remaining in the agreement. Maximum payable is equal to one year's salary and minimum payable is equal lo
six months' salary.

Mr Lee Craker, Chief Financial Officer

. term of agreement — open commencing 1 August 2003.

. total remuneration package of $200,000 per annum, to be reviewed annually by the compensation commitiee
and approved by the board.

. payment of termination benefil on early termination by the employer without cause equal to four weeks'’
salary.

Mrs Jill Mashado, Company Secretary

. term of agreement — open commencing 31 July 2000.

. total remuneration package for the year ended 30 June 2004 of $87,612 (full time equivalent salary
$126,363), to be reviewed annually by the compensation committee and approved by the board.

o payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer without cause egual o one month's
salary.

Mr Francis Placanica, Vice President Business Development

o term of agreement — five years commencing 7 January 2002,

® total remuneration package for the year ended 30 June 2004 of $134,550, to be reviewed annuaily by the
compensation committee and approvad by the board.

° pay’nem of termination benefit on early termination by the emp!oyer without cause equal to one month's

lary.

Dr Mark Varney, Vice President Drug Discovery

o period of employment 8 October 2003 to 1 June 2004,

) details of remuneration as disclosed above.

iz
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Share-Based Compensation - Options
The terms and conditions of each grant of options affecting remuneration in this or future reporting periods are as

follows:
f Grant date Expiry date Exercise price Value per option at Date exercisable J
grant date
4 Qctober 2000 19 June 2010 $1.40 $0.3098 19 June 2005
4 October 2000 19 June 2010 $1.40 $0.3098 19 June 2005
2 June 2002 2 June 2009 $0.81 $0.4279 2 June 2004
2 June 2002 2 June 2010 $0.81 $0.4488 2 June 2005
2 June 2002 2 June 2011 $0.81 50.4671 2 June 2006
2 June 2002 2 June 2012 $0.81 $0.4834 2 June 2007
3 June 2002 3 June 2009 $0.81 $0.4157 3 June 2004
3 June 2002 3 June 2010 $0.81 $0.4365 3 June 2005
3 June 2002 3 June 2011 $0.81 50.4546 3 June 2006
3 June 2002 3 June 2012 $0.81 $0.4707 3 June 2007
14 June 2002 14 June 2009 $0.81 $0.3557 14 June 2004
14 June 2002 14 June 2010 $0.81 $0.3753 14 June 2005
14 June 2002 14 June 2011 $0.81 $0.3924 14 June 2006
14 June 2002 14 June 2012 $0.81 $0.4078 14 June 2007
24 December 2003 18 January 2009 $0.30 50.1415 18 January 2004
5 January 2004 18 January 2009 $0.30 $0.1362 19 January 2004
1 March 2004 | 28 February 2010 $0.37 $0.1358 1 March 2005
1 March 2004 | 28 February 2011 30.37 $0.1455 1 March 2006
1 March 2004 28 February 2012 $0.37 $0.1538 1 March 2007
1 March 2004 28 February 2013 $0.37 $0.1611 1 March 2008
1 March 2004 | 28 February 2014 30.37 $0.1676 1 March 2009

Options are granted under the Bionomics ESOP, details of which are set out in note 1(h) of the financial statements.

Equity instrument disclosures relating to directors and executives
Options provided as remuneration
Details of options over ordinary shares in the Company provided as remuneration to each director and each of the
specified executives are set out below. When exercisable, each option is converiible into one ordinary share of
Bionomics. Further information on the options is set out in note 15(c).

Name Number of options granted Number of options vested
during the year during the year

Directors

Dr Deborah Rathjen 0 440,000
Executives

Mr Lee Craker 500,000 0
Mrs Jill Mashado 35,000 69,667
Mr Francis Placanica 20.000 70,000

Option holdings

The number of options over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director and each
of the specified executives are set out below.

Mame | Balance at the | Granted during | Other changes | Balanceat | Vested and ;

i start of the the year as during the theend of . exercisable ;

§ year remuneration year b the year { at the end of ;

; ‘. ' theyear |

Direciors e o
Mr Fraser Ainsworth | ‘ | | i
- fisted ! 0 0 14,339 14,339 | 14.339 |
- unlisted ' 1.000,000 ¢ 0 (1,000,000} o, 0y
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Dr Deborah Rathjen B
- listed G 0 14,047 14,047 14,047
- unlisied 2,200,000 0 0 2,200,000 1,560,000
Dr Chrislopher Henney
- unlisted 300,000 0 (300.000) g 0
Mr Peter Maddern
- unlisted 300.000 0 (300,000) 0 0
Dr Geoige Morstyn
- listed 0 0 30,477 30.477 30.477
- unlisted 200.000 Q0 0 200,000 200,000
Specified executives i
Mr Lee Craker ‘
- unlisted 0 500.000 0 500.000 0
Mrs Jill Mashado
- uniisted ' 173,333 35,000 0 208,333 104,334
Mr Francis Placanica
- unlisted 250,000 20,000 0 270.000 120,000
Dr Mark Varney 0 0 0 0 0
Share holdings

The number of ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director and each of the
specified execulives are sel out below.

Name Balance at the | Received during Other changes Balance at the end
start of the year the year as during the year of the year
remuneration

Directors

Mr Fraser Ainsworth 151,702 49.020 28,677 229,399
Dr Deborah Rathjen 216,666 0 28,093 244,759
Dr Christopher Henney 257,154 29,412 0 286,566
Mr Peter Maddern 452,082 29,412 0 481,494
Pr George Morstyn 257,258 29,412 60,953 347,623

No shares were held by specifted executives during the financial year.

Loans to Directors and Executives
There were no 10ans to any directors or executives during the financial year ended 30 June 2004.

Other transactions with directors and specified executives

A director, Mr Fraser Ainsworth, is a director and shareholder of Potential Energy Pty Lid. Up until 31 March 2003,
Potential Energy paid the Company for the siorage of office furniture and equipment. These transactions were based
on normal commercial terms and conditions.

Aggregate amounts of the above transaction with directars of Bionomics Limited:

Amounts recognised as revenue 2004 2003
$ $
Storage of office furniture and equipment ‘ 0 360

NOTE 19: EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year the following services were paid to the exiernal audiior:

Assurance Services

1. Audit Services
Fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firmy:
Audit and review of financial reports a2nd olher audit work under the
Corporations Act 2007 . 28,132 28,0¢7

i
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2004 2003
$ $

2. Other Assurance Services
Fees paid to PricewaterhouseCeoopers Australian firm:

Audit of government research grants 10,006 8,000

Due diligence services for 27 February 2004

Entitiements issue 15.249 0
Total remuneration for other assurance services 25,249 8,000
Total remuneration for assurance services 53,388 36,067
Taxation Services
Fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm: ‘

Tax compliance services, inciuding review of Company income tax 11,850 13,300

retums
Total remuneration for external auditors for all services 65,338 49,367

It is the Company's practice to employ PricewaterhouseCoopers on assignments additional to their statutory audit
duties where PricewaterhouseCoopers’ expertise and experience with the Company are important. in 2003/04 these
assignmenis were restricted to taxation advice, acquittal of grant expenditure and due diligence of the entitlements
issue.

2004 2003
NOTE 20: COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE $ $
Service contract commitments payable
- not later than one year 670,000 670,000

Pursuant to the terms and agreements entered into by the Company with both the Women's and Children’s Hospital
{(WCH) and the University of Melbourne (U of M) to acquire the licence for the epilepsy project from the WCH and the
U of M and the breast cancer project from the WCH, the Company is liable to make further payments lo the WCH and
the U of M upon the achievement of certain conditions.

Pursuant to the terms and agreement entered into by the Company with Medvet Science Pty Lid (Medvet), for the
Angiogenesis Project, the Company is liable o make further payments to Medvet upon the achievement of certain
conditions.

Due to the confidential nature of the agreements, further disclosure would not be in the Company’s best interests.

As at 30 June 2004, the Company had issued a purchase order to PerkinElmer for the purchase of drug discovery
screening equipment. The cost of this equipment is $482,191 and will be funded by an operating lease. The cost of
this lease will be approximately $11-12,000 per month over a three year period, commencing approximately QOctober
2004.

NOTE 21: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2004 2003
$ $
Employee benefit and related on-costs liability
Provision for employee benefits — current {note 13) 146,933 55,324
Aggregate employee benefit and related on-cosls liability 146,933 05,324
The Bionomics ESOP

informalion reiating to the Bionomics ESOP is set out in notes 1{h) and 15(c) of the financial statements.

NOTE 22: EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

On 6 July 2004, the Company announced that its Chairman, Mr Fraser Ainsworth had zdvised the Board of his
intention to relinquish his Chairman’s role within the next few months and that he would be retiring as 2 non-executive
direcior by the Company's AGM in November 2004. The Company is presenily undertaking a search for a new
Chairman,

On 11 August 2004, the Company issued an invitation letier to Dr Dehorah Rathien, to acquire 75,000 oplions under
tha Ricnnmire FQOWP The icsue nf theso anfione ig subisrt 1o sharehnlder asproval =t the AGWM
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No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected, or may
significantly affect, the operations of the Company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Company in future financial years.

NOTE 23: CASH FLOW INFORMATION 2094 2003
$ S

Reconciliation of operating loss afler income tax to net cash inflow

from operating activities

Operating loss after income tax (3.574,582) {4,540,955)
Non-cash items in operating loss
Depreciation and amortisation - 517,773 681,568
Directors' fee {note 24) 46,667 46,667
Net gain on sale of non-current assets {14.,108) 0
Provision for employee entitlements 51,609 34,566

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Decrease/(Increase) in deblors and accruais (47,200) 13,193
Decrease/(increase) in other operating assets {20.049) 83,018
increase/(Decrease) in creditors and accruals (operating 126,241 (48.,909)
activities only})
Cash flows from operations {2.983,649) {3,730.852)
NOTE 24: NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Directors’ fees satisfied by the issue of shares 46,667 46.667
NOTE 25: EARNINGS PER SHARE 2004 2003
cents cents
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) (7.4) (11.3)
Alternative earnings per share {cents per share) (5.2) (8.7)

The alternative earnings per share amounts have been calculated to demonstrate the impact on basic earnings per
share should all options on issue at 20 June 2004 be converted to ordinary shares.

The basic and alternative earnings per share amounts have been calculated using the ‘Total change in equity other
than those resulting from transactions with owners as owners’ figure in the statement of financial performance.

2004 2003

Number Number
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as a
denominator in calculating basic earnings per share 48,658,987 40,243,799
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and polential ordinary
shares used as the denominator in calculating aliernative earnings
per share 57,761,584 48,573,135

Changes to potential ordinary shares since balance date
On 18 July 2004, 25.000 options exercisable at $0.30 izpsed. The weighted average number of potential ordinary
shares included in the calculation of aiternative EPS relating to these options is 25,000.

On 28 July 2004 the Company issued 454,582 crdinary shares in consideration for services rencered to the Company
relating to the Equity Line Finance Agreement signed in July 2003.

Information concerning the classification of securities
Cpticns zre considered 10 be potential ordinary shares and have been included in the determination of aliernative
earnings per share. The options have not been included in the delermination of basic eamnings per share. Datails
relating o the options are set out in nole 15(c}. A
7
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

The directors declare that the financial stalements and notes set out on pages 14 t¢ 33:

(a) comply with Accounting Standards, the Corporstions Reguiations 2007 and other mandatory professional
reporting reguirements; and

(b) give a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 30 June 2004 and performance for the
financial year ended ¢n that date.

In the directors' opinion:
(a) the financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2007; and

{b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable,

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

() A —

i’ - .d/‘:f / r

Fraser Ainsworth AM Deborah Rathjen

Chairman Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

At
Dated this {S day of August 2004
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Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial report of Bionomics Limited:

L gives a true and fair view, as required by the Corporations Act 20071 in Australia, of the financial
position of Bionomics Limited as at 30 June 2004, and of its performance for the year ended on that
date, and

® is presented in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and other

mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
This opinion must be read in conjunction with the rest of our audit report.
Scope
The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance,
statement of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration for
Bionomics Limited (the company) for the year ended 30 June 2004.

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2007, This includes responsibility for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed 1o prevent and detect fraud and error,
and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members of the company. Our audit
was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in order to provide reasonable assurance as
to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors
such as the use of professional judgement, selective tesling, the inherent limitations of internal conirol. and the
availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all
material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures (o assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly. in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and other mandatory financial reporiing
reguirements in Australia, 2 view which is consistent with our undersianding cf the company's financial
position, and of its performance as represented by the resuits of its operations and cash flows.
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Independent audit report to the members of
Bionomics Limited (continued)

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

. examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report, and
L assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

When this audit report is included in an Annual Report, our procedures include reading the other information in
the Annual Report to determine whether it contains any material inconsistencies with the financial report.

While we considered the effectiveness of management's internal controls over financial reporiing when
determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on
internal controls.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or
management.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical
pronouncements and the Cerporations Act 2001,
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PG Steel Adelaide
Partner 19 August 2004



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

All shareholder information provided is current as at 10 August 2004.

Difference in Resuits Reported to the ASX
There are no material differences between the figures reported in the financial statements and those lodged with the
ASX in the Company's Appendix 4C for the quarter ended 30 June 2004,

Audit and Compliance Committee
The Company established an audit and compliance committee in July 2002. The main responsibilities of the audit and
compliance committee are set out in the section headed 'Corporate Governance Statement' of the Annua! Report.

Corporate Governance
Bionomics' corporate governance practices are set out in the section headed 'Corporate Governance Statement’ of
the Annual Report.

Substantial Shareholders
Substantial holders in the Company are set out below:

Ordinary shares ‘ Number held Percentage
Duncan Mount and Boom Australia Pty Limited {jointly) 5,219,127 8.19
Link Traders (Aust) Pty Lid 4,500,000 7.06
Queenstand Investment Corporation 3,905,991 6.13

Equity Securities
There are 2,404 holders of ordinary shares and 459 holders of listed options.

The number of sharehoidings held in less than marketable parcels is 683.
The number of option holdings held in {ess than marketable parcels is 425.

Voting Rights
There are two classes of equity securities issued by the Company, ordinary shares and listed options, with voting
rights attached only to the ordinary shares. One share equates o one vote.

Distribution of Shareholders of Equity Securities

Number of shareholders

Category (size of holding) Ordinary shares  Listed options
1-1,000 319 291
1,001 - 5,000 903 113
5,001 - 10,000 450 15
10,001 - 100,000 : 664 24
100,001 — and over 68 16
2,404 459
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Unqguoted Equity Securities

Options Mumber
The following options were unquoted:
Options exercisable at $0.50 between 17 December 2007 and 7 November 2004 300,000
Options exercisable at $0.50 between 17 December 2001 and 8 November 2004 1.540,000
Options exercisable at $1.00 between 21 June 2002 and 21 June 2005 289,600
Options exercisable at $0.65 between 8 June 2001 and 8 June 2005 75,000
Options exercisable at $1.00 between 19 June 2002 and 18 June 2007 340,000
Options exercisable at $1.00 between 19 June 2003 and 18 June 2008 340,000
Options exercisable at $1.00 between 19 June 2004 and 19 June 2009 170,000
Optlions exercisable at $1.40 betweesn 19 June 2004 and 19 June 2009 170,000
Options exercisable al $1.40 between 19 June 2005 and 10 June 2010 680,000
Options exercisable at $1.30 between 18 June 2003 and 18 June 2006 15,000
Options exercisable at $0.95 between 8 August 2002 and 8 August 2007 200,000
Options exercisable at $1.20 between 14 May 2003 and 14 May 2008 60,000
Options exercisable at $1.20 between 14 May 2004 and 14 May 2009 40,000
Options exercisable at $1.40 between 14 May 2004 and 14 May 2009 20,000
Options exercisable at $0.79 between 1 January 2004 and 1 January 2007 25,000
Options exercisable at $0.81 between June 2003 and June 2008 371,666
COptions exercisable at $30.81 between June 2004 and June 2009 271,666
Options exercisable at $0.81 between June 2005 and June 2010 371,666
Options exercisable at $0.81 between June 2006 and June 2011 371,666
Options exercisable at $0.81 between June 2007 and June 2012 371.666
Options exercisable at $0.43 between 3 February 2004 and 3 February 2009 40,000
Options exercisable at $0.43 between 3 February 2005 and 3 February 2010 10,000
Options exercisable at $0.43 between 10 February 2003 and 13 January 2008 50,000
Cptions exercisable at $0.43 between 13 January 2004 and 13 January 2008 50,000
Options exercisable at $0.43 between 13 January 2005 and 13 January 2008 50,000
Options exercisable at $0.40 between 4 March 2005 and 4 March 2008 301,000
Options exercisable at $0.30 between January 2004 to January 2009 187,000
Options exercisable at $0.30 between January 2005 to January 2010 15,000 .
Options exercisable at $0.30 between January 2006 to January 2011 15,000
Options exercisable at $0.30 between January 2007 to January 2012 15,000
Options exercisable al $0.30 between January 2008 1o January 2013 15,000
Options exercisable at $0.30 between January 2009 to January 2014 15,000
Options exercisable at $0.37 between March 2005 to March 2010 107.000
Options exercisabie at $0.37 between March 2006 to March 2011 107,000
Options exercisable at $0.37 between March 2007 to March 2012 107,000
Options exercisable at $0.37 between March 2008 to March 2013 107,000
Options exercisable at $0.37 between March 2009 to March 2014 107,000
Options exercisable at $0.38 between March 2005 to March 2010 5,000
Options exercisable at $0.38 between March 2006 to March 2011 5,000
Options exercisable at $0.38 between March 2007 to March 2012 . 5,000
Options exercisable al $0.38 between March 2008 to March 2013 5,000
Options exercisable at $0.38 between March 2009 to March 2014 5,000
Options exercisable at $0.25 from 1 June 2004 to 1 January 2009 50,060
Options exercisable at $0.25 from 1 January 2005 to 1 January 2009 50,000
Options exercisable at $0.25 from 1 Januzry 20086 to 1 January 2009 50,000
Options exercisable at $0.30 from 1 April 2006 to 1 April 2009 25,000
Options exercisable at $0.2766 from 14 July 2003 tc 14 July 2008 100,000
Total unquoted options held by 48 oplionholders i 7.730,833
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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Twenty largest quoted equity security holders

The names of the 20 largest holders of quoted equity securities are listed below:
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Name

Mr Duncan Mount & Boom Australia Pty Limited

Link Traders (Aust) Pty Ltd

Queensland investment Corporate
Permanent Trustee Australia

Invia Custodian Pty Limited WAM Capital
Equity Trustees Limited

Invia Cuslodian Pty Limited WAM Equity
Mirrabooka Investments Limited
National Nominees Limited

UBS Nominees Pty Ltd

Wallace Absolute Retumn Ltd

Dixson Trust Pty Lid

inhowse Pty Ltd

Fortis Clearing Nominees P/L

Asia Union Investments Pty Limited
Ladies’ Own SDN Berhad

Sydney Fund Managers

Peter Maddern

Ms Alexandra Bowie Wilson

Starwide Investments Pty Lid

Name

Mr Duncan Mount & Boom Australia Pty Ltd
Queensland Investment Corporation
Wallace Absolute Return Lid

Invia Custodian Pty Limited WAM Capital
Link Traders (Aust) Pty Ltd

Permanent Trustee Australia Limited
Invia Custodian Pty Limited WAM Equity
National Nominees Limited

Dixson Trust Pty Ltd

inhowse Pty Lid

Goffacan Pty Lid

UBS Nominees Pty Ltd

Intersuisse (Nominees) Pty Limited
Dragonfly Pty Lid

Ross Asset Management Lid

Grofund Lid

Meanikato Financial Services Pty Lid
Raimar Pty Lid

Clodene Pty Lid

Mambat Pty Ltd

Ordinary shaves

Number held Percentage of
issued shares

5,219,127 8.19
4,500,000 7.06
3,805,991 6.13
2,711,418 4,25
2,365,284 3.71%
1,584,298 2.49
1,338,486 2.10
1,100,000 1.73
1,067,000 1.67
1.031.657 1.62
1,000,000 1.57
766,971 1.20
605,154 0.95
540,329 0.85
500,000 0.78
500,000 0.78
500,000 0.78
481,494 0.76
376,000 0.59
373,333 0.59
30,465,542 47.8

Listed options

Number held Percentage of
issued
options

1.212,064 12.38
1,012,274 10.33
1,000,000 10.21
904,172 9.23
867,707 8.86
812,763 8.30
508,098 5.20
500,000 5.10
383,486 3.91
302,577 3.09
296,100 3.02
243,320 248
160.715 1.64
125,000 1.28
87,500 0.89
80,358 0.82
80,358 0.82
77,862 0.79
77.500 0.7¢
65,000 0.66
5,797,854 898
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COMPANY PARTICULARS
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Bionomics Limited. a listed public Company,
is domiciled and incorporated in Australia.

Bionomics Limited shares and options are
listed on the Australian Stock Exchange
under the codes BNO (shares) and BNOQA
(optians).

Registered Office

31 Dalgleish Street
Thebarion SA Australia 5031
Telephone: 61 8 8354 6100

Administrative Office

31 Dalgleish Street

Thebarton SA Austrafia 5031
Telephone: 61 8 8354 6100
Facsimile: 61 8 8354 6199

E-mail: infofbiononucs.com.ay

Web Address: www. bionomics.con.ay

Share Registry .

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited

Level 5, 115 Grenfell Street

Adelaide SA Australia 5000

Telephone: 1300 556 161 {within Australia)
61 3 9615 4000 (outside Australia)

E-mail: web. queres@Meoomputershare.com. au

Web Address: www.compuiershare . com

Solicitors

Johnson Winter & Slattery
211 Victoria Square
Adelaide SA Australia 5000

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Santos House, 91 King William Street
Adelaide SA Australia 5000

Patent Attorneys

Griffith Hack

167 Eagle Street

Brishane QLD Ausiralia 4000

Bionomics is net listed on any other stock
exchanges other than the ASX.

Directors
Mr Fraser Ainsworth AM
Dr Deborah Rathjen

Dr Christopher Henney
Mr Peter Maddern
Dr George Morstyn

Senior Management
Dr Deborah Rathjen

Mr Lee Craker

Mrs Jill Mashadoe

Dr Steven Petrou

Mr Francis Placanica
Dr tan Street

Dr Kerstin Holata
Dr Gabriel Kremmidiotis

Chairman

Chief Execulive

Officer and Managing
Director

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Chief Executive

Officer and Managing
Director

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary and
Finance Manager

Vice President CNS3
Research

Vice President Business
Development

Vice President,
Consullant Drug
Discovery

Director Drug Discovery
Director Cancer
Research

Scientific Advisory Board
Professor Grant Sutherland AC, PhD, DS¢, FRCPA,

FAA, FRS

Professor Samuel Berkovic MD, FRCPA

Dr Errol De Souza PhD

Professor Ashley Dunn MPhil, PhD
Dr Tim Harris PhD, MSc, BSc
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COMPANY PARTICULARS

Bionomics has an American Depositary Receipts program {ADRs) sponsored by Tha Bank of New York, under
the ticker code ‘BMICY'. For further details about this program, please contact:

United States Austratia

Ms Anita Sung Mr Barry Driscoll

Assistant Vice President Vice President

The Bank of New York The Bank of New York
American Depositary Receipts Level 4

101 Barclay Street, 22W 90 Wiiliam Street

New York NY 10286 Melboume VIC 3000
Telephone: 1(212) 815 8161 Telephone: 61 3 9670 0944
Facsimile: 1 (212) 571 3050 Facsimile: 61 3 9670 9559
E-mail: asung@hankofny.com E-mail: bdiiscolli@bankainy.com

or visit The Bank of New York's
website at www.adrbny.com




Bionomics Limited

19 August 2004

Securities and Exchange Commission
Judiciary Plaza,

450 Fifth Street,

Washington DC_ 20549

Re: Bionomics Limited - File numbef 82-34682

Please see attached provided pursuant to Section 12g3-2(b) file number 82-34682.

Yours sincerely

)POJI‘ Jill Mashado
" Company Secretary

Bionomics Limited ABN 53 075 582 740
31 Dalgleish Street Thebarton SA Australia 5031 Phone 618 8354 6100 Fax 61 8 8354 6193 Email info@bionomics.com.au
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Bionomics Limited

ABN 52075582740

ASX ANNOUNCEMENT
19 August 2004

Bionomics’ 2003/2004 Financial Results

Bionomics Limited (ASX: BNO, BNOOA, US OTC: BMICY) today announced
its 2003/2004 financial results, highlighting continued progress in the
Company’s epilepsy and cancer research programs.

Bionomics’ CEO and Managing Director, Dr Deborah Rathjen said, “A key
objective for Bionomics this past year was to accelerate our epilepsy drug
discovery and diagnostic programs. Together with our collaborative partners
we are aiming to bring a Severe Myoclonic Epilepsy of Infancy (SMEI)
diagnostic test to market in the current financial year.”

*Our cancer program is also showing solid progress with data on our
proprietary angiogenesis drug target, BNOG9, being recently presented to
several US scientific meetings and published in the eminent scientific journal
Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences USA (PNAS),” Dr Rathjen
said.

Key Points — Operations

. Clinical study of patients with SME! progressed well with feedback from
Bionomics’ clinical collaborators indicating a strong need for specific
gene-based diagnostic tests for this serious condition.

. Development of a second, syndrome specific, animal model of inherited
human epilepsy, which displays the absence form of epilepsy. Bionomics
has entered into a US National Institute of Health funded research
collaboration with the University of Wisconsin Medical School to study
Bionomics’ proprietary animal models of epilepsy.

. Establishment of collaborations with Walter and Eliza Hall Institute and
Southern Cross University to access compound libraries and chemistry
for epilepsy and anxiety drug discovery.

. Formation of a strategic alliance with PerkinEimer Inc. on ion channel
drug screening technologies for Bionomics’ epilepsy and anxiety drug
discovery programs.

. Presentation of Bionomics’ proprietary drug target, BNO69, to several
US scientific meetings and a subsequent collaboration on the drug target
with the Louisiana Gene Therapy Consortium.

. Acceptance of Bionomics’ nicotinic acetylcholine ion channel receptor
patent application in New Zealand.

Page 2 of 15
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Key Points — Finance

. Cash on hand at June 2004 of $8.703 million ($6.071 million at June
2003). :

. The operating loss of the Company after income tax for the year ended
June 2004 was $3.575 million, a 21.3% reduction on the prior year of
$4.541 million.

o Revenue of $1.983 million representing a 23.3% increase over the prior
year aided by increased government R&D Start grants ($1.608 million for
the year ended June 2003). .

. Reduction in net operating and capital expenditure cash outflows by
17.6% to $3.111 million ($3.774 million for the year ended June 2003).

. $5.744 million (net of costs) raised via placement and shareholders
entitiements issue.

Mr Lee Craker, Bionomics CFO said, “The Company has continued to ensure
it is operating with a solid funding position. During the year we were able to
increase grant income and raise additional capital which enabled the
Company to appropriately resource its research programs.”

Outlook

In commenting on the outlook for Bionomics, Dr Rathjen said, “We are now
well placed to fast track our epilepsy and anxiety drug discovery programs
whilst continuing to target early commercialisation of epilepsy diagnostics.”

“Bionomics is now pursuing a tightly focused growth strategy. We are
leveraging our scientific expertise along with our intellectual property to
develop diagnostics for a nearer term revenue stream and therapedutics for the
longer term. This strategy encompasses growth both on an organic level and
through acquisition,” Dr Rathjen further added.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION PLEASE CONTACT:

DR DEBORAH RATHJEN MR LEE CRAKER

CEO & MANAGING DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
BIONOMICS LIMITED BIONOMICS LIMITED

Ph: +61 8 8354 6101 Ph: +61 8 8354 6105

About Bionomics Limited

Bionomics (ASX:BNO, BNOOA, US OTC:BMICY) is a world ieader in
genomics, holding patent applications at various stages of prosecution
incorporating over 600 genes it has discovered and related utility in specific
therapeutic and diagnostic applications. The Company is leveraging that
expertise and intellectual property to generate both near term and longer-term
revenues. Focusing on central nervous system disorders (particularly
epilepsy) and cancer, Bionomics and its collaborative partners are developing
diagnostics for the early detection of these conditions (near term revenue) and

Page 3 of 15
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therapeutics to treat them (longer term revenue). The Company targets
profitably in the near term and is looking to generate growth both organically
and through acquisition.

Bionomics leverages its gene discoveries in epilepsy with its proprietary ionX®
discovery platform, a novel platform for the discovery and development of new
and more effective treatments for epilepsy and other CNS disorders, including
anxiety.

Angene™, Bionomics' angiogenesis target and drug discovery platform,
incorporates a variety of genomics tools to identify and validate novel
angiogenesis targets. Bionomics utilises the unique attributes of the
Angene™ platform for the discovery of drugs for the treatment of cancer and
inflammatory diseases.

Bionomics has an American Depository Receipts (ADRs) program sponsored
by The Bank of New York

For more information about Bionomics, visit www.biohomics.com.au

Factors Affecting Future Performance

This announcement contains "forward-looking” statements within the meaning of the United
States’ Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Any statements contained in this
press release that relate to prospective events or developments, including, without limitation,
statements made regarding Bionomics’ business and its SME! diagnostic test, are deemed to
be forward-looking statements. Words such as "believes,” "anticipates,” “aiming,” "plans,”
"expects,” "projects,” “forecasts,” "will' and similar expressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. There are a number of important factors that could cause actual
results or events to differ materially from those indicated by these forward-looking statements,
including risks related to our available funds or existing funding arrangements, a further
downturn in our customers' markets, our failure to introduce new products or technologies in a
timely manner, regulatory changes, risks related to our international operations, our inability to
integrate acquired businesses and technologies into our existing business and to our
competitive advantages, as well as other factors. Subject to the requirements of any
applicable legislation or the listing rules of any stock exchange on which our securities are
quoted, we disclaim any obligation to update any forward-looking statements as a result of
developments occurring after the date of this press release.

Page 4 of 15
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BIONOMICS LIMITED
Year ended 30 June 2004

(Previous corresponding period:
Year ended 30 June 2003)

Results for Announcement to the Market

$

Cash position as at 30 June 2004 increased by | 434% | to 8,703,415
Net operating and investing cash reduced by 176% | to 3,110,787
outflows for the period

Revenue from ordinary activities increased by | 23.3% | to 1,982,994
Loss from ordinary activities after tax reduced by 213% | to 3,574,582
attributable to members

Loss for the period attributable to members | reduced by 213% | to 3,674,582

Explanation of Cash Position as at 30 June 2004
Reflects successful placement and entitiements issue raising $5.744 million (net of costs) in
early 2004 combined with reduced net operating cash out flow.

Bionomics is well positioned to fund ongoing R&D programs including expanded drug
discovery targeting epilepsy and anxiety.

Explanation of Net Operating and investing Cash outflows
Increased grant revenues and reduction in R&D expenditure versus 2002/03.

Explanation of Revenue
Revenue consists predominantly of Federal Government Grants, commercialisation income,
rent and interest income.

Revenue has increased by $375,238 during the current financial year, predominantly as a
result of increased grant revenue. Refer to the notes to the preliminary ﬂnanmal statements
for a breakdown of revenue items.

Explanation of Loss from ordinary activities after tax
The loss recorded was in line with expectations.

Explanation of Loss
Refer to previous item.

Dividends/Distributions
Bionomics Limited does not propose to pay any dividends for the year ended 30 June 2004.
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Revenue from ordinary activities

Borrowing costs expense

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Employee and director benefits expenses

Legal expenses

Research and development expenses

Shareholder and investor communications expenses

Travel expenses

Other expenses from ordinary activities

Loss from ordinary activities before related income tax expense

Income tax expense
Loss from ordinary activities after related income tax expense

Total changes in equity other than those resulting from
transactions with owners as owners

Page 6 of 15
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BIONOMICS LIMITED
Preliminary statement of financial performance
For the year ended 30 June 2004

2004 003
$

1,982,994 1,607,756
317,669 302,411
517,773 681,568
859,147 645,010
107,236 55,554
3,107,534 3,732,031
72,844 145,840
155,448 175,722
419,925 410,575
(3,5674,582) (4,540,955)
0 0
(3,574,582) (4,540,955)
(3,574,582) (4,540,955)
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BIONOMICS LIMITED
Preliminary statement of financial position

As at 30 June 2004
2004 2003
$ $

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash assets 8,703,415 6,070,486
Receivables 135,363 27,470
Other 131,927 105,297
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,970,705 6,203,253
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5,976,729 6,310,723
Intangible assets 14,178 56,711
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 5,990,907 6,367,434
TJOTAL ASSETS 14,961,612 12,570,687
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 524,166 350,149
Interest bearing liabilities 508,400 508,400
Provisions 146,933 95,324
Other 225,622 276,124
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,405,121 1,229,997
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing liabilities 4,575,600 4,575,600
Payables 50,000 50,000
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,625,600 4,625,600
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,030,721 5,855,597
NET ASSETS 8,930,891 6,715,090
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Contributed equity 26,155,308 20,364,925
Accumulated losses (17,224,417) (13,649,835)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 8,930,891 6,715,090
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Cash flows from operating activities
Grants received
Rent received
Receipts from customers
Goods and Services Tax collected from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Goods and Services Tax paid to suppliers
Goods and Services Tax refund received from ATO

Interest received
Borrowing costs

Net cash (outflow) from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment
Payments for purchases of property, plant & equipment
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from share issues
Share issue expenses

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash heild
Cash at the beginning of the financial year

Cash at the end of the financial year

Page 8 of 15
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BIONOMICS LIMITED
Preliminary statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2004

2004 2003
$ $
Inflows Inflows
{Outflows) (Qutflows)
1,453,872 926,899
119,283 172,194
68,259 80,208
162,683 108,595
(4,633,184) (4,987,561)
(260,113) (246,817)
50,411 151,181
(3,038,789) (3,795,301)
286,980 366,860
(231,840) (302,411)
(2,983,649) (3,730,852)
87,000 0
(214,138) (43,301)
(127,138) (43,301)
6,270,078 1,248,680
(526,362) (28,160)
5,743,716 1,220,520
2,632,929 (2,553,633)
6,070,486 8,624,119
8,703,415 6,070,486
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BIONOMICS LIMITED
Notes to the preliminary financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2004

Material factors affecting the revenues and expenses of the economic entity for the

current period

Revenue from operating activities
Grants received
Licensing fees

Revenue from outside the operating activities
Interest received or receivable

Rent received or receivable

Sale of non-current asset

Other income

Revenue from ordinary activities

Net gains and expenses

Loss from ordinary activities before related income tax expense
includes the following specific net gains and expenses:

Net gains
Net gains on disposal of plant and equipment

Expenses
Borrowing costs
- Interest paid or payable

Depreciation of:

- Administrative plant and equipment
- Scientific plant and equipment

- Building

Amortisation of non-current assets
- Licences

Rental expense on operating leases
- Minimum lease payments

Research and development
- Research and development costs

Other provisions
- Employee entitlements
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2004 2003
$ $

1,425,095 1,028,243
104,703 80,208
1,529,798 1,108,451
309,454 333,019
127,449 161,401
14,108 0
2,185 4,885
453,196 499,305
1,982,994 1,607,756
14,108 0
317,669 302,411
23,241 28,021
227,013 386,027
224,986 224,986
475,240 639,034
42,533 42,534
0 72,756
3,107,534 3,732,031
51,609 34,566
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Material factors affecting the assets, liabilities and equity of the economic entity for the

current period

Issued and paid-up capital

Ordinary shares - fully paid

Ordinary shares — fully paid

Movements in ordinary shares of the Company during the past year were as follows:

Date Details

1 July 2003 Opening Balance

7 November 2003 Share issue —~ directors fees

1 March 2004 Share issue — placement

7 April 2004 Share issue -~ placement

16 April 2004 Share issue — entitlements

4 June 2004 Share issue — conversion of listed options

Less capital raising costs associated with the

placement & entitlements issue

30 June 2004 Closing Balance

Issue
price

$0.34
$0.32
$0.32
$0.32
$0.50

2004 2003
$ $
26,155,308 20,364,925
Number Number
63,294,251 43,563,376
Number of $
shares
43,563,376 20,364,925
137,256 46,667
6,230,000 1,993,600
6,230,000 1,993,600
7,132,946 2,282,542
673 336
(528,362)
63,294,251 26,155,308

Material factors affecting the cash flows of the economic entity for the current period

NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Directors’ fees satisfied by the issue of shares

Changes in accounting policies
Not applicable.

Fundamental errors
Not applicable.

Extraordinary items
Not applicable

Page 10 of 15

2004

$
46,667

2003

$
46,667



Reconciliation of income tax expense
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The prima facie tax on operating loss is reconciled to the income tax
provided in the financial statements as follows: ‘

Prima facie tax benefit on operating results at 30%

Tax effect of permanent differences:

- Research and development expenditure

- R&D incremental deduction

- Other non-allowable items

Income tax adjusted for permanent differences

Under/(Over) provision in prior year

Income tax benefit not recognised
income tax expense

Reconciliation of profit from ordinary activities after income tax to net cash flow

from operating activities

Reconciliation of operating loss after income tax to net cash inflow
from operating activities

Operating loss after income tax

Non-cash items in operating loss
Depreciation and amortisation
Directors’ fee
Net gain on sale of non-current assets
Provision for employee entitiements

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease/(Increase) in debtors and accruals
Decrease/(increase) in other operating assets
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors and accruals (operating
activities only)

Cash flows from operations

Segment note

2004 2003
$ $
(1,072,375) (1,362,287)
(28,424) (149,644)
0 (194,706)
908 1,473
(1,099,891) (1,705,164)
0 (93,775)
(1,099,891) (1,798,939)
0 0
2004 2003
$ $
(3,574,582) (4,540,955)
517,773 681,568
46,667 46,667
(14,108) 0
51,609 34,566
(47,200) 13,193
(90,049) 83,018
126,241 (48,909)

(2,983,649)  _ (3,730,852)

Bionomics Limited, which operates solely in Australia, conducts genomics-based research focused on
diagnostic product development and drug discovery in CNS disorders and cancer.

Events occurring after reporting date

On 6 July 2004, the Company announced that its Chairman, Mr Fraser Ainsworth had advised the
Board of his intention to relinquish his Chairman's role within the next few months and that he would be
retiring as a non-executive director by the Company’s AGM in November 2004. The Company is

presently undertaking a search for a new Chairman.

On 11 August 2004, the Company issued an invitation letter to Dr Deborah Rathjen, to acquire 75,000
options under the Bionomics Employee Share Option Plan. The issue of these options is subject to

shareholder approval at the 2004 AGM.
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BIONOMICS LIMITED
Supplementary Appendix 4E information

Retained Earnings

ACCUMULATED LOSSES 2004 2003

$ $
Balance at the beginning of the year (13,649,835) (9,108,880)
Net loss for the year (3,574,582) (4,540,955)
Balance at the end of the year (17,224,417) (13,649,835)
NTA Backing
2004 2003
Net tangible asset backing per ordinary share 14.1 cents 15.3 cents
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Commentary on results

EARNINGS PER SHARE 2004 2003

cents cents
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) (7.4) (11.3)
Alternative earnings per share (cents per share) 5.2) (8.7)

The alternative earnings per share amounts have been caiculated to demonstrate the impact on basic
earnings per share should all options on issue at 30 June 2004 be converted to ordinary shares.

The basic and alternative earnings per share amounts have been calculated using the “Total change in
equity other than those resulting from transactions with owners as owners’ figure in the Preliminary
Statement of Financial Performance.

2004 2003

Number Number
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as a denominator
in calculating basic earnings per share 48,656,987 40,243,799
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary
shares used as the denominator in calculating alternative earnings
per share 57,761,584 48,573,135

Changes to potential ordinary shares since balance date

On 18 July 2004, 25,000 options exercisable at $0.30 lapsed. The weighted average number of
potential ordinary shares included in the calculation of alternative EPS relating to these options is
25,000.

On 28 July 2004 the Company issued 454,582 ordinary shares in consideration for services rendered to
the Company relating to the Equity Line Finance Agreement signed in July 2003.

Information concerning the classification of securities

Options are considered to be potential ordinary shares and have been included in the determination of
alternative earnings per share. The options have not been included in the determination of basic
earnings per share.

Significant features of operating performance
Refer ASX Announcement attached, “Bionomics’ 2003/04 financial resuits”.

Results of segments
Not applicable.

Audit
This report is based on accounts which have been audited (audit report attached).
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Audit opinion
in our opinion, the financial report of Bionomics Limited:
¢ gives a frue and fair view, as required by the Corporations Act 2007 in Australia, of the financial

position of Bionomics Limited as 2% 30 June 2004, and of its performance for the year ended on that

date and

L]

is presented in accordance with the Comporalions Act 2007, Accounting Standards and other
mandalory financial reporting requirements in Australia, and the Cormporations Regulations 2007,

This opinton must be read in conjunction with the rest of our audit report.
Scope
The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance,
statement of cash flows, accompanying nates to the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration for
Bionomics Limited {the company) for the vear ended 30 June 2004,

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2007, This includes responsibility for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records and intemnal controls that are designed o prevent and detect fraud and arror,
and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach

We conducied an independent audil in order 1o express an opinion 1o the members of the company, Our audi
was conducied in accordance with Australian Audlling Standards, in order o provide reasonable assurance as
io wnether the financial report i3 free of material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors
such as the use of professional judgement, seleclive lesting, the inherent imitations of internal control, and the
svailability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all
material misstaternents have been defected.

We periormed procedures (0 assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Acoounting Standards ang other mandaiory financial reporting
requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with cur understanding of the company’s financial
pasition, and of its performance as represented by the results of ts operations and cash flows.
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Independent audit report to the members of
Bionomics Limited {continued)

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

¢ . examining, on & test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report, and
2 assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

When this audit repert is included In an Annual Report, our procedures include reading the other information in
the Annual Report to determing whether i containg any material inconsistencies with the financial repor.

While we considered the effectiveness of management's infernal controls over financial reporting when
determining the naturs and extent of our procedures, our audit was nol designed to provide assurance on

internal conirols,

Gur audit did not Invoive an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or
management,

independence

1 conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professiona! ethical
p{oncuacemems and the Corporations Act 2001,
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